
 
 

 
 
 

 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board 
 

 

 

Meeting 
 

NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.30 pm, FRIDAY, 5TH FEBRUARY, 2021 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Annes Sion 

01286 679018 

AnnesSion@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 29/01/21) 

Complete Agenda



 

NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 
 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE  
 

Voting Members 
 

Councillors 
 

Hugh Evans Denbighshire County Council 
Llinos Medi Huws Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Mark Pritchard Wrexham County Borough Council 
Ian B. Roberts Flintshire County Council 
Dyfrig L. Siencyn Gwynedd Council 
Sam Rowlands Conwy County Borough Council 

 

Advisers - Non-voting  
 

Dafydd Evans Grwp Llandrillo Menai 
Maria Hinfelaar Glyndwr University 
Yana Williams Coleg Cambria 
Askar Sheibani Business Delivery Board 
Professor Iwan Davies Bangor University 

 

Chief Officers - Non-voting  
 

Annwen Morgan Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Iwan Davies Conwy County Borough Council 
Colin Everett Flintshire County Council 
Judith Greenhalgh Denbighshire County Council 
Ian Bancroft Wrexham County Borough Council 
Dilwyn Williams Gwynedd Council 

 

Officers in Attendance 
 

Dafydd L. Edwards Section 151 Officer 
Iwan G. Evans Monitoring Officer 
Alwen Williams Portfolio Director 
Hedd Vaughan Evans Operations Manager 
Nia Medi Williams Senior Executive Officer 
  
  
  

 

 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

   
2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 

 To receive any declarations of Personal Interest  

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

   
4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
5 - 6 

 The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
December 2020 be signed as a true record. 

 

 

5.   2020/21 BUDGET : 3RD QUARTER REVIEW 
 

7 - 13 

 Dafydd Edwards to provide the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 
(NWEAB) with details of the actual expenditure and income for the third 
quarter of the 2020/21 financial year as well as projected full year out-turn 
against its annual budget. 

 

 

6.   FINAL DEAL AGREEMENT 
 

14 - 48 

 Alwen Williams to present the signed version of the Final Deal agreement 
for the North Wales Growth Deal, prepared by the Welsh Government and 
UK Government. 

 

 

7.   PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 

49 - 65 

 Hedd Vaughan-Evans to update the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 
on progress since the completion of the Final Deal Agreement in December 
2020. 

 

 

8.   FUNDING AND BUSINESS CASE PROCESS 
 

66 - 68 

 Hedd Vaughan-Evans to update the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 
on the relevant processes for approving project business cases and 
securing the annual drawdown of funding. 

 

 

9.   PRIVATE SECTOR ENGAGEMENT 
 

69 - 79 

 Alwen Williams to present a proposed draft Terms of Reference for the 
Business Delivery Board, jointly developed by the Business Delivery Group 
and the Portfolio Management Office. 

 

 

10.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 The Chairman shall propose that the press and public be excluded from the  



 

meeting during the discussion on the following item due to the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph14 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government act 1972 - Information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 
There is an acknowledged public interest in openness in relation to the use 
of public resources and related financial issues. It is also acknowledged that 
there are occasions, in order to protect the financial interests that matters 
related to commercial information need to be discussed without being 
publicised. The report deals specifically with financial and business matter 
and related discussions. Publication of such commercially sensitive 
information could adversely affect the interests of the bodies and the 
Councils.  This would be contrary to the wider public interest of securing the 
best overall outcome. For those reasons I am satisfied that the matter 
should be exempt in the public interest. 

 
11.   PROJECT BASELINE REVIEW 

 
 

   
 
 



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 11/12/20 

 

 

NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 11/12/20 
 

 
Present: 
 
Voting Members - Councillors:- Hugh Evans (Denbighshire Council), Llinos Medi Huws (Isle of 
Anglesey County Council), Dafydd Meurig (Gwynedd Council), Mark Pritchard (Wrexham County 
Borough Council), Ian B.Roberts (Flintshire Council) and Sam Rowlands (Conwy County Borough 
Council). 
 
Advisors – Dafydd Evans (Grŵp Llandrillo Menai), Maria Hinfelaar (Glyndŵr University), Askar 
Sheibani (Business Delivery Board) and Prof. Iwan Davies (Bangor University). 
 
Chief Officers - Annwen Morgan (Isle of Anglesey County Council), Iwan Davies (Conwy County 
Borough Council), Colin Everett (Flintshire Council), Judith Greenhalgh (Denbighshire Council), 
Ian Bancroft (Wrexham County Borough Council) and Dilwyn Williams (Gwynedd Council).   
 
Officers in attendance - Dafydd Edwards (Statutory Finance Officer - Host Authority), Iwan Evans 
(Monitoring Officer - Host Authority), Alwen Williams (Portfolio Director), Hedd Vaughan-Evans 
(Operations Manager), Jane Richardson (Chair of the Executive Officers Group), Nia Medi 
Williams (Senior Operational Officer) and Eirian Roberts (Democracy Services Officer). 
 
The meeting was chaired by the Vice-chair, Councillor Mark Pritchard (Wrexham County Borough 
Council) in the absence of the Chair, Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn (Gwynedd Council). 
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Dafydd Meurig (Gwynedd Council) to the meeting to deputise on 
behalf of Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn. 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 

Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn (Gwynedd Council). 
 
2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST  
 

No declarations of personal interest were received.  
 
3. URGENT ITEMS  
 

None to note.  
 
4. MINUTES  
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of the NWEAB held on 23 October, 
2020 as a true record.  
 

5. FINAL DEAL - SUPPLEMENTARY DOCUMENTS  
 
The report was submitted by Alwen Williams, Portfolio Director and Hedd Vaughan-Evans, 
Operations Manager. 
 
RESOLVED to adopt the supplementary documents to the report submitted to the 
Board, namely the Risk Register, Monitoring and Evaluation Plan, Benefits 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 11/12/20 

Realisation Strategy and Change Management Strategy for the North Wales Growth 
Deal.  
 
REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
The NWEAB was committed to achieving the Final Deal Agreement with both Governments 
before the end of December 2020. 
 
The Portfolio Management Office had developed the documents that needed to be 
submitted to both Governments in order to reach a Final Deal. 
 
The Portfolio Management Office needed to have effective management arrangements in 
place in order to ensure the successful delivery of the North Wales Growth Deal. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Submitted - the report which updated the Board on the Final Deal Agreement process and 
included the supplementary documents that were needed in order to reach Final Agreement 
for the North Wales Growth Deal with UK Government and Welsh Government. It was 
noted that the intention was to continue to develop and refine these documents over the 
course of the next 6-12 months. 
 
Details were provided about the background and relevant considerations and the 
consultations held.  
 
The Chair noted that all partners had now approved the key documents needed in order to 
reach Final Agreement for the North Wales Growth Deal with UK Government and Welsh 
Government. He thanked everyone for their outstanding work and noted that what the six 
authorities had achieved, working jointly across north Wales with their partners and chief 
executives, was incredible. 
 
It was further noted that the Welsh Cities and Growth Deals Implementation Board had 
approved the portfolio business case. Advice was being prepared for the ministers and 
arrangements were underway to hold a virtual ceremony to sign the Final Deal on 17 
December. Everyone was encouraged to publicise this event to allow more partners and 
residents of north Wales to join in the celebration. 
 
During the discussion, it was noted that:- 
 

 The framework was robust and the quality of the reports was excellent. The Team 
was congratulated for all their work. 

 Given the situation in relation to Brexit, and the risk around economic changes, it 
was good to see emphasis on logic and assumptions modelling, so that it would be 
clear if the circumstances changed, or if anything were to affect the projects that we 
were working on. It was good to receive documents in real time to allow us to 
analyse whether the benefits were being realised, or if a different course of action 
was needed as a result of potential changes in circumstances, such as Brexit. 

 
The meeting commenced at 1.00 pm and concluded at 1.20 pm 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 6



Economic Ambition Board:  05/02/2021                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

1 

 

 

REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 

05/02/2021 

 

 

Title:    Revenue Budget 2020/21 – Third Quarter Review (December 2020)    

Author:  Dafydd L Edwards, Host Authority Statutory Finance Officer    

 

 
1.  Purpose of the Report 

1.1 This report intends to provide the North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) with 

details of the actual expenditure and income for the third quarter of the 2020/21 financial 

year as well as projected full year out-turn against its annual budget. 

1.2 In order to operate effectively, the Joint Committee needs to be aware of its projected 

expenditure position against its approved annual budget. 

 

2.  Decision Sought 

2.1 To receive and note the NWEAB joint committee’s Third Quarter Review for 2020/21. 

2.2 To obtain the Joint Committee’s approval for any underspend in 2020/21 to be transferred 

to the earmarked reserve that will be available for future years. 

 

3. Reasons for the Decision 

3.1 To note a forecast underspend of £156,255 in 2020/21.  Any underspend at the end of the 

financial year to be transferred to the earmarked reserve.    

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Economic Ambition Board:  05/02/2021                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

2 

4.  Background  

4.1 The NWEAB in its meeting on 12 June 2020 approved its 2020/21 budget of £1,673,690.  This 

included £1,468,420 for the Portfolio Management Office, £155,770 for the accountable 

body’s support services and £49,500 for the joint committee.   The budgeted funding 

contributions came from partner contributions, European Social Fund (ESF) grant, the 

earmarked reserve and the Public Transport (Wales) Bill Grant.   

4.2 The second quarter review was presented to the NWEAB on 23 October 2020, and an  

underspend of £78,452 was forecasted at this time. 

4.3 The out-turn report and the annual return for 2020/21 will be presented to the NWEAB on 14 

May 2021. 

 

5. Expenditure and income in 2020/21 

5.1 Appendix 1 provides a detailed analysis of the actual expenditure and income for the third 

quarter of the 2020/21 financial year, together with projected full year out-turn against its 

annual budget.   

5.2 At the end of the third quarter, the actual net position was a (Covid-19 affected) surplus of 

£121,080.   

5.3 The net out-turn position at the end of the 2020/21 financial year is forecasted to be an 

underspend of £156,255.  

 

Portfolio Management Office 

5.4 An underspend of £578,773 is forecasted for the Portfolio Management Office in 2020/21.  

This has increased by £151,772 since the last quarter, mainly due to further delayed 

recruitment to posts and other Covid-19 related reductions in headings such as travel and 

subsistence; training; engagement and meetings; communications and public relations; 

project planning, development and support. 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



Economic Ambition Board:  05/02/2021                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

3 

Accountable Body Support Services 

5.5 The projected costs for the accountable body support services heading reflected the budget 

figure in the last quarter, but with further information available, a net underspend of £22,364 

is forecasted for this year.  

 

Joint Committee 

5.6 An underspend of £5,767 is forecasted on the Joint Committee heading, with a marginal 

increase from the last quarter. 

 

Funding Contributions 

5.7 Based on our projected employee expenditure of £596,013 for 2020/21, as well as the 

expenditure for the retrospection period from April 2019 (changed from the original 

anticipated retrospection period commencing from July 2018), £561,720 of grant funding 

could be received during this financial year.  The income from the earmarked reserve is not 

likely to be required in 2020/21 due to the back-dated ESF grant received. 

5.8  There are ongoing discussions with the Welsh Government on the Growth Deal grant offer 

letter, to allow for the first payment of £16m to be released before the end of March 2021.  

As this will be a capital grant received in advance, it will be shown as a creditor on the Annual 

Return’s Statement of Balances at 31 March 2021, and will be available to fund the capital 

programme during 2021/22. 

6.   Staffing Implications 

6.1 The estimated out-turn position for 2020/21 reflects the recruitments that have taken place 

over recent months, with the remaining recruitments likely to commence early in the new 

financial year.  The current staffing structure for the Portfolio Management Office is shown in 

Appendix 2.  

 

 

 

Page 9



Economic Ambition Board:  05/02/2021                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

4 

7.  Consultations Undertaken  

7.1 Appendix 1, as well as a summary of the contents of this report, was presented to the 

Executive Group on 15 January 2021. 

 

8.  Appendix 

Appendix 1 – Economic Ambition Board Budget 2020/21 – Third Quarter Review (December 

2020). 

Appendix 2 – Staffing structure for the Portfolio Management Office. 

 

 

STATUTORY OFFICERS’ OPINIONS: 

 

i. Monitoring Officer – Accountable Body: 

No observations to add from a propriety perspective. 

 
ii. Statutory Finance Officer  – Accountable Body: 

Author of this report. 

Page 10



Appendix 1

Base Budget One-off virements Total Budget April - 
December 

2020 

Estimated 
Final Position

Overspend / 
(Underspend)

Expenditure (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) (£)

Portfolio Management Office

Employee Expenditure (Pay, N.I. & Superannuation) 933,740 933,740 352,419 596,013 (337,727)
Advertising and Assessment of Candidates 10,000 10,000 11,644 16,644 6,644
Travel and Subsistence 20,000 20,000 0 0 (20,000)
Training 10,000 10,000 20,000 1,125 5,000 (15,000)
Engagement and Meetings 15,000 15,000 99 99 (14,901)
Communications and Public Relations 37,530 62,470 100,000 14,050 35,000 (65,000)
Supplies and Services 10,000 10,000 20,000 9,232 15,000 (5,000)
Regional Engagement Team (RET) 42,290 42,290 42,287 42,287 (3)
Premises 17,500 17,500 10,070 17,500 0
Project Planning, Development and Support 180,000 180,000 92,120 140,783 (39,217)
Transport 109,890 109,890 14,761 21,321 (88,569)

Portfolio Management Office Total 1,086,060 382,360 1,468,420 547,807 889,647 (578,773)

Accountable Body Support Services

Finance Services Support 98,110 98,110 0 68,237 (29,873)
Legal (includes Monitoring Officer) 20,250 20,250 0 20,250 0
Corporate Support 26,060 26,060 21,876 37,580 11,520
Information Technology 11,350 11,350 0 7,339 (4,011)

Accountable Body Support Services Total 155,770 155,770 21,876 133,406 (22,364)

Joint Committee

External Legal Support 18,000 18,000 14,933 33,000 15,000
Treasury Advisory 10,000 10,000 8,975 8,975 (1,025)
External Audit Fee 1,500 1,500 (511) 1,000 (500)
Business Delivery Board 20,000 20,000 758 758 (19,242)

Joint Committee Total 49,500 49,500 24,155 43,733 (5,767)

Total Expenditure 1,291,330 382,360 1,673,690 593,838 1,066,786 (606,904)

Economic Ambition Board Budget 2020/21 - Third Quarter Review (December 2020)

P
age 11



Appendix 1

Base Budget One-off virements Total Budget April - 
December 

2020 

Estimated 
Final Position

Overspend / 
(Underspend)

Income (£) (£) (£) (£) (£)

Funding Contributions

Partner Contributions 
Conwy County Borough Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Denbighshire County Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Flintshire County Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Gwynedd Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Isle of Anglesey County Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Wrexham County Borough Council (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 0
Bangor University (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0
Wrexham Glyndwr University (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0
Coleg Cambria (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0
Grŵp Llandrillo Menai (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0

Partner Contributions - Other
Conwy County Borough Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0
Denbighshire County Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0
Flintshire County Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0
Gwynedd Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0
Isle of Anglesey County Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0
Wrexham County Borough Council (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) 0

Public Transport (Wales) Bill Grant (109,890) (109,890) (4,781) (21,321) 88,569
European Social Fund (ESF) Priority 5 funding (651,330) (651,330) (70,137) (561,720) 89,610
Earmarked Reserve (272,470) (272,470) 0 0 272,470

Total Income (1,291,330) (382,360) (1,673,690) (714,918) (1,223,041) 450,649

Net Overspend / (Underspend) 0 0 0 (121,080) (156,255) (156,255)

Economic Ambition Board Budget 2020/21 - Third Quarter Review (December 2020)

P
age 12



Swyddfa Rheoli Portffolio | Portfolio Management Office

Cyfarwyddwr Portffolio

Portfolio Director 

Rheolwr
Gweithrediadau

Operations Manager

Rheolwr Rhaglen
Ddigidol

Digital Programme 
Manager

Rheolwr Prosiect
Cysylltedd Digidol

Digital Connectivity 
Project Manager

Rheolwr Rhaglen Ynni

Energy Programme 
Manager

Rheolwr Prosiect Ynni

Energy 
Project Manager

Rheolwr Rhaglen Tir ac 
Eiddo

Land and Property 
Programme Manager

Rheolwr Rhaglen
Cynllun Twf

Growth Deal Programme 
Manager 

Uwch Swyddog 
Gweithredol

Senior Operations  Officer

Swyddog Ymgysylltu a 
Chyfathrebu

Communications and 
Engagement Officer

Rheolwr Prosiect Cyllid
Ewropeaidd

European Funding Project 
Manager

Swyddog Cefnogi
Rhaglen

Programme Support 
Officer

Swyddi Presennol
Current Posts

Swyddi wedi penodi ond heb gychwyn yn y swydd
Appointed but not yet started

Atodiad 2 | Appendix 2

P
age 13



 
 

 

REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 

5th FEBRUARY, 2021 
 

 

TITLE: Final Deal Agreement 

AUTHOR: Alwen Williams, Portfolio Director 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to present the signed version of the Final Deal agreement for the 

North Wales Growth Deal, prepared by the Welsh Government and UK Government. 
 

1.2. The Final Deal Agreement has been prepared in the context of the Portfolio Business Case 
supported and approved by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. 

 
2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. That the Board notes the completion of the Final Deal Agreement. 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. As stated in the report. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. In November 2019 the NWEAB and the Welsh and UK Governments agreed the Heads of Terms, 

for Final Deal Agreement to be completed in 2020. 
 
4.2.  The Final Deal Agreement is the declaration of contract between the Partners, UK Government 

and Welsh Government for the delivery of the North Wales Growth Deal.  
 
4.3. The NWEAB have discussed and agreed to recommend the draft Final Deal agreement during the 

meeting of the NWEAB on 23rd October 2020. The draft Final Deal agreement was presented 
through the partners democratic and decision-making processes. The final document was 
developed jointly by agreement with both Governments. 

 
4.4. A signing ceremony took place during December 2020, with all 10 partners of the Board in 

attendance along with Ministers from both Governments. 
 
4.5. A copy of the Deal Agreement for the North Wales Growth Deal is included in Appendix 1. 
 

 

 

APPENDICES: 
 

Appendix 1 Final Deal Agreement 

 

 Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

 

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority: 
 
“The signing of the Final Deal Agreement is a key milestone, and it is appropriate that the 
Ambition Board receives a formal report on the completion of this stage.” 
 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer): 
 
“I confirm the Monitoring Officer’s comments.” 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
 

1 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

NORTH WALES 

GROWTH DEAL  

FINAL DEAL 

AGREEMENT 

Page 16



 
 

2 
 
 

Foreword 

The Growth Deal has been developed through close collaboration and commitment, from 

partners across governments and sectors, to deliver long-lasting positive investment and 

change that will enable economic and employment growth for the long-term.  

Over fifteen years, the Growth Deal empowers us to work together and take control of how 

we invest in our future.   

It is a unique opportunity to de-centralise government investment, make those investment 

decisions locally and demonstrate the value this brings. Ultimately, as part of a broader 

programme of investment, the Growth Deal will enable us to build a more vibrant, 

sustainable and inclusive economy for North Wales.  

The UK Government and Welsh Government are jointly investing £240million into the 

Growth Deal over 15 years. Alongside the North Wales Economic Ambition Board partners 

and the private sector, the Growth Deal is seeking to deliver a total investment of £1billion 

in the North Wales economy (£120m each from UK and Welsh governments), to create 3800 

net additional jobs and generate £2.2billion in net additional GVA. 

Building on the Heads of Terms, signed in November 2019, this document sets out a 

compelling vision for North Wales. The aim of the Growth Deal is to build a more vibrant, 

sustainable and resilient economy in North Wales, building on our strengths to boost 

productivity while tackling long-term challenges and economic barriers to delivering 

inclusive growth.  

The Growth Deal’s approach is to promote growth in a scalable, inclusive and sustainable 

way in line with the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, and the UK’s Net-

Zero target. 

The Growth Deal will promote Welsh Government’s national strategy: Prosperity for All 

which commits to delivering a regionally focused model of economic development, 

integrating policy, programmes and interventions to better support sustainable and 

inclusive growth in all parts of Wales, as well as the UK Government’s ambition to strengthen 

Wales’ place in the Union.  

Tackling inequalities is at the heart of the UK Government’s Levelling Up agenda, and the 

Welsh Government Economic Action Plan, which is grounded in the principle that places 

matter and it is our ambition to deliver better jobs closer to home. 

The signing of this document, by all parties reaffirms our joint commitment to achieve full 

implementation of the Growth Deal over the next 15 years. 

We look forward to seeing the benefits leading this important investment will bring for 

people and businesses across North Wales.  

Page 17

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/876300/Pennawdau_Telerau_Heads_of_Terms_2.pdf


 
 

3 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ken Skates MS 

Minister for Economy, Transport and 

North Wales 

Welsh Government 

 

Julie James MS 

Minister for Housing and Local Government 

Welsh Government 

 

Rebecca Evans MS 

Minister for Finance and Trefnydd 

Welsh Government 

 

 

 

 

 

Simon Hart MP 

Secretary of State for Wales 

UK Government 

 

David TC Davies MP 

Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

UK Government 

 

Luke Hall MP 

Minister of State for Regional Growth 

and Local Government  

UK Government 

 

 

 

 

 

Cllr Sam Rowlands 

Leader 

Conwy County Borough Council 

 

Cllr Hugh Evans 

Leader 

Denbighshire County Council 

 

Cllr Ian Roberts 

Leader 

Flintshire County Council 

 

 

 

 

 

Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn 

Leader 

Gwynedd Council 

 

Cllr Mark Pritchard 

Leader 

Wrexham County Borough Council 

 

Cllr Llinos Medi Huws 

Leader 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 

 

All parties to this Final Deal have provided their signatures electronically 

Page 18



 
 

4 
 
 

1. Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 

 

Foreword ............................................................................................................................................................... 2 

1. Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

2. Executive Summary .................................................................................................................................... 5 

3. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

4. The Growth Deal programmes ................................................................................................................ 17 

5. Governance structure ............................................................................................................................... 19 

6. Role of the Accountable Body ................................................................................................................. 28 

7. Monitoring and evaluation ........................................................................................................................ 29 

8. Communications Protocol ........................................................................................................................ 29 

9. Delivering for North Wales ....................................................................................................................... 30 

Annex 1 – Proposed Growth Deal Projects ................................................................................................... 31 

Annex 2 – Additional Governance Documents to the FDA .......................................................................... 32 

Annex 3 – Annual Funding Approval Process ............................................................................................... 33 

 

  

 

Page 19



 
 

5 
 
 

2. Executive Summary 

The North Wales Growth Deal (the Growth Deal) is an agreement between the UK 

Government, Welsh Government and the North Wales Economic Ambition Board (hereafter 

referred to as the Economic Ambition Board) to deliver a transformational £1billion 

investment in the North Wales economy. 

The Economic Ambition Board is a partnership between the six Local Authority areas of North 

Wales comprising the Councils of Gwynedd, Anglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, Wrexham and 

Flintshire and also includes Bangor University, Glyndŵr University, Coleg Cambria and Grŵp 

Llandrillo-Menai. 

Despite growth in recent years, there remains a persistent and widening productivity gap 

between North Wales and the UK with wide variations in GVA (Gross Value Added) per capita 

across the region. Addressing this productivity gap and disparities within Wales is an 

important priority for the Growth Deal.  

The aim of the Growth Deal is to build a more vibrant, sustainable and resilient economy in 

North Wales, building on our strengths to boost productivity while tackling long-term 

challenges and economic barriers to delivering inclusive growth. The Growth Deal is based on 

the delivery of five programmes: 

 Low carbon energy Programme 

 Innovation in high value manufacturing Programme 

 Agri-food and tourism Programme 

 Land and Property Programme 

 Digital Programme 

By focusing delivery on these programmes collectively, the Growth Deal will achieve a greater 

impact in terms of our ambition and use of resources than individual projects. 

All programmes and projects within the Growth Deal will contribute to the achievement of 

these objectives and the delivery of benefits for North Wales. The benefits from the Growth 

Deal will support sustainable and inclusive growth across the region. 

The UK Government, Welsh Government and Economic Ambition Board have put in place 

robust delivery, assurance and governance arrangements to support the delivery of the 

Growth Deal. 

The Growth Deal is seeking to deliver a total investment of £1billion in the North Wales 

economy (£240m from UK and Welsh governments), to create 3800 net additional jobs 

and generate £2.2billion in net additional GVA. 

  

Page 20



 
 

6 
 
 

3. Introduction 

City and Growth Deals in Wales are agreements between the UK Government, Welsh 

Government and local authorities in Wales to coordinate new investment and policy 

interventions to drive growth in key areas. The deals are locally led with leaders coming 

together across a locally agreed economic geography to develop a set of proposals that will 

drive growth and productivity across their region. The UK and Welsh governments support 

these local partners to deliver interventions to achieve local growth. 

 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

The Economic Ambition Board was established in 2012 as a partnership between the six 

Local Authority areas of North Wales comprising the Councils of Gwynedd, Anglesey, Conwy, 

Denbighshire, Wrexham and Flintshire. The Economic Ambition Board also includes Bangor 

University, Glyndŵr University, Coleg Cambria and Grŵp Llandrillo-Menai. In early 2019, the 

Economic Ambition Board was formally established as a joint committee.  

 

Figure 3.1 Map of North Wales and North Wales Economic Ambition Board Partners 

 

 

 

Page 21



 
 

7 
 
 

The Growth Deal is a partnership between the public and private sectors. The private sector 

has been strongly represented by the Business Delivery Group as well as the North Wales 

Mersey Dee Business Council who have been key to the development of the Growth Deal 

proposition.  The Business Delivery Group was established to act as an independent advisory 

group to the Economic Ambition Board. The group is represented by business owners and 

senior leaders across industries who have challenged the Economic Ambition Board 

throughout the process of identifying and developing the Growth Deal portfolio. Their focus 

being to maximise the impact of the Growth Deal for the region and ensuring that the 

private sector opportunities can be accessed and led by business. 

The North Wales Mersey Dee Business Council, a founding member of the Economic 

Ambition Board, has worked in close collaboration with member organisations and regional 

stakeholders to shape and influence the Growth Deal proposition. 

 

The Vision for North Wales 

In 2016 the Economic Ambition Board partners adopted A Growth Vision for the Economy of 

North Wales (the Growth Vision). 

The adopted Growth Vision is to develop “a confident, cohesive region with sustainable 

economic growth, capitalising on the success of high value economic sectors and our 

connection to the economies of the Northern Powerhouse & Ireland.” 

The Growth Vision was founded on three key principles for North Wales: 

 Smart – with a focus on innovation and high value economic sectors to advance 
economic performance. 

 Resilient – with a focus on retaining young people, increasing employment levels and 
skills to achieve inclusive growth. 

 Connected – with a focus on improving transport and digital infrastructure to enhance 
strategic connectivity to and within the region. 

Building on the vision, the Economic Ambition Board presented a proposition document to 

the Welsh Government and UK Government in October 2018. This led to the signing of 

Heads of Terms in November 2019.  The signing demonstrated a commitment by each of the 

partners to work together for the people and businesses of North Wales, and deliver local 

programmes and projects which will increase opportunity and prosperity in communities 

across the region. This Final Deal Agreement builds on the foundations set through the 

Heads of Terms. 

 

Page 22

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/876300/Pennawdau_Telerau_Heads_of_Terms_2.pdf


 
 

8 
 
 

The Growth Deal will be smart with this investment - building on the region’s strengths to 

boost productivity, foster innovation and be competitive in the markets it serves. North 

Wales already has well-established research and innovation hubs including AMRC Cymru in 

Broughton, the Menai Science Park on Anglesey and the OpTIC Technology Centre in 

St.Asaph, which are helping the region to push the boundaries in discovering new growth 

areas within high value manufacturing. The Growth Deal will invest further to create centres 

of excellence to enhance the region’s reputation and enable growth in this important 

industry.  

The Growth Deal will tackle the long-term market failure that has been a barrier for 

commercial investment - making North Wales more investable and unlocking the potential 

for new high-value skilled jobs, for young people and our future generations to thrive. The 

Growth Deal will address the shortage of suitable land and properties for business growth 

and to bring forward sites to provide the employment land and housing needed as well as 

invest in the Port at Holyhead.  

By investing now, the Growth Deal will build resilience for the future. 

North Wales is connected as a region. The partnership across the six local authorities, 

universities, colleges and the private sector is well established and growing in strength. The 

Growth Deal will drive a step change in digital connectivity by balancing investment in 

infrastructure and technology. The Growth Deal will address those areas most in need of 

faster and more reliable broadband connections and exploit the potential of 5G access and 

new digital innovation. Opportunities also lie in the region’s close connections with the 

neighbouring economies such as the Mersey Dee Alliance, the Northern Powerhouse, 

Ireland and Mid-Wales. The Growth Deal will build stronger economies by working together.  

The Growth Deal will strengthen our reputation as a cohesive region; leveraging 

partnerships to promote growth in the economy that is scalable, sustainable and inclusive. 

The investment in low-carbon energy projects enables the region to contribute directly to 

the climate change emergency, not only helping to make North Wales a cleaner, greener 

environment, but also positioning the North Wales region as one of the leading UK locations 

within the low carbon energy sector. Not forgetting the foundation economies in agriculture 

and tourism, the Growth Deal will help to enable and encourage diversification to improve 

the long-term future of these key industries, ensuring they have opportunity to develop 

sustainably and thrive.  

The Growth Deal will invest in a way that promotes social value and builds wealth in the 

region’s communities. The Economic Ambition Board recognises and values the obligation to 

deliver the Growth Deal in a way that improves and enhances our social, cultural, 

environmental and economic well-being. 

 

Page 23



 
 

9 
 
 

The Region 

North Wales is known for its beautiful landscapes, its history, heritage, culture and it has the 

highest proportion of Welsh speakers in Wales at an estimated 41.9%1.  

North Wales is home to nearly 700,000 residents and contributes £14.2 billion to the UK 

economy each year,2 representing 22% of the Welsh economy.3 In North Wales, the 

population is projected to increase by 2.1 per cent in the 2018-2028 period, and 3.1 per cent 

in the 2018-2038 period. North Wales has an ageing population.  

The total GVA in North Wales in 2018 was £14,239million, up 4.1 percent over the previous 

year, which accounted for 21.9 percent of Wales total GVA (£65,089million) and 0.8 percent 

of UK total GVA (£1,892,681million) in that year.4 Within North Wales, there are wide 

variations in GVA per capita, with particularly weak productivity on the Isle of Anglesey 

(53% of the UK average) but stronger performance in Flintshire and Wrexham (both of 

which are 81% of the UK average).5 This is also reflected in average earnings, which lag 

behind the UK average. Indeed, some local authorities in the West have the lowest earnings 

in Wales and the UK. For the year ending 30 June 2018, North Wales had the highest 

employment rate and lowest unemployment and economic inactivity rates of the Welsh 

regions6. However, there is a greater need in the region for high value employment 

opportunities. 

North Wales has a number of areas that are within the top 10% most deprived areas in 

Wales. Many of the most deprived areas are based in rural communities. 

There remains a persistent and widening productivity gap between North Wales and the 

UK with wide variations in GVA (Gross Value Added) per capita across the region. 

Addressing this productivity gap and disparities within Wales is an important priority for 

the Growth Deal.  

North Wales has a diverse economy with key sectors being manufacturing, energy and 

tourism as well as public sector jobs.  The public sector accounts for nearly a quarter (24.7%) 

of the region’s GVA. A fifth (20.3%) of the economy is accounted for by manufacturing, 

                                                                 
 

1 Welsh Government – Summary Statistics for Welsh economic regions: North Wales, May2020 

2 Measured by Gross Value Added (GVA). Source: ONS, 2018 data. 

3 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-
Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year  

4 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-
Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year  

5 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-
Value-Added-GDP/gvaperhead-by-area-year  

6 Welsh Government – Summary Statistics for Welsh economic regions: North Wales, May2020 

Page 24

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gva-by-measure-welsheconomicregion-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gvaperhead-by-area-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gvaperhead-by-area-year


 
 

10 
 
 

which is significantly more important in North Wales than in Wales as a whole (where it 

accounts for 17% of GVA). Wholesale and retail, transport, hotels and food sector accounts 

for 17% of the economy of North Wales. The chart below shows the GVA breakdown by 

industry in North Wales as of 2018  7 

 

A portion of the productivity gap is accounted for by the sectoral structure of the North 

Wales economy, with some areas particularly reliant on relatively low paid sectors including 

tourism and retail. At the same time, there are areas of strength, with 64,000 people 

employed in high value sectors, defined as manufacturing, information and communication, 

and professional, scientific and technical activities. 

Supporting high value sectors and addressing long-term barriers to growth is at the heart 

of the Growth Deal.  

There is an ageing population in the region and a net outward migration of talent from the 

region. Whilst the population of North Wales is expected to increase to 722,317 by 2039, 

the share of the population aged 65 or above is expected to increase from 23.6% to 29.8%. 

This means a smaller share of working age people, which may place pressures on the supply 

of skills.  

The employment rate amongst working age residents in North Wales stood at 75.9% at 

March 2020, which was the same as the UK. Over 5 years, between March 2015 and March 

2020, 18,300 jobs were added to the economy, a growth of 6.2% for the region. The specific 

impacts of Covid-19 on the North Wales economy and the Growth Deal are set out in the 

next section. 

                                                                 
 

7 Source: ONS. 

Public administration and 
defence; education; and 

health, 24.7%

Manufacturing, 
20.3%

Wholesale and retail, transport, 
hotels and food sector, 17.1%

Real estate, 11.9%

Agriculture, mining, 
electricity, gas, water 

and waste, 6.7%

Construction, 6.6%

Professional, scientific and technical 
activities; administrative and 

support service activities, 6.5%

Other, 6.2%

Page 25



 
 

11 
 
 

The case for change 

This section sets out the challenges and opportunities across the key sectors in the North 

Wales economy that the Growth Deal is seeking to address: 

High value manufacturing 

 Supporting innovation and R&D: there is a need for facilities and technical support 
with individual businesses unable to access the skills and expertise to innovate and 
improve productivity via efficiency savings. 

 Supporting the low carbon agenda: there is a strong need to decarbonise industry 
in order to meet national targets for clean growth, as well as to capitalise on market 
opportunities, with the number of ‘green-collar’ jobs expected to grow to 2 million 
and the value of UK exports from the low carbon economy expected to grow to £170 
billion a year by 2030. 

 Supply chain integration: A progressive depletion or ‘hollowing out’ of the Welsh 
and UK-based supply chain over recent decades represents a long-term threat to 
production and manufacturing capability and to its future prosperity. There is a need 
to re-build and sustain SMEs within supply chains to drive competitiveness. 

 Improving productivity: North Wales’ advanced manufacturing sectors are relatively 
high productivity sectors in the economy, but there is great potential to increase 
productivity via targeted investments in R&D and skills.   

Agri-food and tourism 

 Required investment in R&D and Innovation: Engineering & Physical Science 
Research Council (EPSRC) data suggests that only 2% (c. £95 million) of all grants 
offered are directed to the Food & Drink sector. R&D spend across these three 
sectors equated to 1.3% of all R&D spend across all sectors in the UK (as of 2018) 
despite the sectors making up 10% of total employment. 

 Supporting the low carbon agenda across Wales and the UK: From an 
environmental perspective, reducing carbon emissions is crucial to the future 
sustainability of Wales and this was recognised in the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015, which set a target to reduce emissions. Introducing 
sustainable low carbon land management practices, as well as driving innovation and 
new low carbon technologies in the agriculture sector could contribute to the long-
term low carbon agenda. 

 Improving productivity: In 2017, gross output per hectare of agricultural land was 
£858 in Wales, significantly lower than UK’s most productive region, which was the 
South East of England (£3,190 per ha). The figures show that the value of gross 
output per hectare of agricultural land in Wales is lower than all other regions in 
England, and lower than Northern Ireland (£2063 per ha), but higher than Scotland 
(£514 per ha). The tourism sector also suffers from lower productivity levels than 
those seen in England, with GVA per employee in the tourism sector equating to 
£19,600; 14% lower than the equivalent metric in England. 

Page 26



 
 

12 
 
 

 Meeting skills needs: The latest Employer Skills Survey indicated that 25% of 
restaurants and hotels in Wales reported skills shortages and 45% businesses within 
primary industry (which includes agriculture). Both sectors also reported skills gap 
increases from the previous survey, with hotel and restaurants reporting a +3% 
increase whilst primary industry reported a +28% increase.  

 Diversification and resilience: agriculture, food and tourism sectors form the 
backbone of many local economies in North Wales. With the change of historical 
funding sources this sector is facing with the UK’s imminent exit from the European 
Union it is important rural businesses have the support and knowledge to help them 
diversify. 

 Lack of appropriate premises: Research carried out by Arad for the Glynllifon Rural 
Economy Hub indicates that the lack of food-grade premises, local product 
development facilities and technical support is holding back the potential of the 
sector, with individual businesses unable to access the skills and expertise to 
innovate and improve productivity via efficiency savings.  

Low carbon energy 

 Addressing climate change: Responding to the climate emergency declared by welsh 
Government and both the Welsh and UK government’s aim of achieving Net Zero by 
2050. There is a need to decarbonise North Wales’ energy system, including energy 
generation, housing and transport. 

 Supporting economic growth in low carbon energy sectors: exploiting local 
strengths and competitive advantages (e.g. existing energy infrastructure, research 
strengths and skilled workforce) to drive growth in the low carbon energy sector 
where there are substantial growth opportunities nationally (sector forecast to grow 
11% per year to 2030). An estimated £10.9bn of additional investment is needed by 
2035 to put the region on track to achieve Net Zero. This level of investment has the 
potential to create up to 24,400 new jobs. 

Land and property 

 A need for modern employment floorspace. The network of readily developable 
strategic sites, capable of supporting both indigenous business growth and inward 
investment is relatively weak and fragmented 

 Low land values and infrastructure constraints have resulted in insufficient 
developer interest, leading to a lack of supply of housing and commercial premises. 
To date the market has failed to address these challenges and therefore there is a 
specific need for Growth Deal funding to enable the delivery of employment space, 
serviced residential land and improvements to Holyhead Gateway. 

  

Page 27



 
 

13 
 
 

Digital connectivity 

 Addressing the digital divide: in order for the North Wales economy to prosper and 
for key sectors to grow to their fullest potential, significant connectivity gaps must be 
addressed. There is a need to rapidly increase gigabit connectivity at key growth sites, 
ensure rural ‘not spots’ are tackled in full, deliver seamless mobile connectivity across 
economic corridors and assets and provide the foundations for greater social equity 
and inclusion. 

 Responding to clear demand for better connectivity: a wide body of evidence 
showcases the prescient need for next generation fixed and mobile broadband and 
the opportunity cost of poor provision, relative to other parts of the UK. There is an 
exceptional appetite to deploy more sophisticated technologies and innovative use 
cases, which will secure productivity, efficiency and competitiveness across the region. 

 Creating competitive market conditions: North Wales’ digital connectivity has been 
constrained by a lack of market competition at the wholesale level, and within the 
degree of choice offered by broadband providers at the retail level. There is an 
opportunity to respond to this by creating conditions that improve market 
attractiveness, reduce consumer costs, enhance end user take-up and provide the 
basis for longer-term commercial investment. 

 Establishing a world-class digital corridor: the A55 is the primary economic axis for 
North Wales, connecting key sites, hubs for growth and the region’s most prominent 
assets. There is an opportunity to ensure that 5G and full fibre broadband creates a 
seamless high-speed corridor, as the basis for large-scale smart technology 
deployment, pilots and trials and as a lever for inward investment. 

 Expanding digital research capacity: North Wales has an emerging profile as a base 
for innovative and technology-led research, led by higher education institutions and 
the private sector. There is an opportunity to scale this further, drawing on other 
sources of funding and business intent, creating a critical mass of technology, 
expertise and ambition to ensure that North Wales is at the cutting edge of the 
discovery and deployment of cutting-edge technologies. 

 

The economic impact of Covid-19 

Covid-19 has had an immense economic impact on North Wales as in other parts of the UK 

and globally.  The Economic Ambition Board works closely with the six local authorities, UK 

and Welsh Governments and private sector representatives to co-ordinate the regional 

response to economic recovery.   

The longer-term effects of Covid-19 on the regional economy at this stage is unknown but 

work is underway to define the current state of the economy during what has been a 

challenging period for businesses and employees across many sectors. Uncertainty caused 

by the pandemic and the end of the transition period for leaving the European Union are 

both contributing factors.  

Page 28



 
 

14 
 
 

The Growth Deal programmes were designed to be robust and relevant to deliver long-term 

economic growth for the region. Despite the challenges of Covid-19, the programme themes 

being addressed are demonstrating how they deliver value to counter the impacts of the 

Covid-19 pandemic.  

Digital – the demand and reliance on digital connectivity to enable people to go about their 

daily lives, work and learn from home, keep in touch with loved ones, run businesses and 

access essential public services has never been greater and will only continue to grow.  

Low carbon energy – positioning North Wales as a leading UK location for low carbon 

energy generation, innovation and supply chain investment will secure hundreds of new 

jobs for generations to come. Playing a key role in addressing climate change and in 

delivering against government policy areas while creating more prosperous communities for 

the region is an absolutely key enabler for overcoming Covid-19.  

Land and property – the demand for land and property development has been uncertain 

throughout Covid-19. The Growth Deal investment places focus on key strategic sites and 

will stimulate the local construction sector as well as support the development of Holyhead 

port as a valuable economic asset for the region. The requirements for employment space 

on each site will be reviewed as project business cases are developed to take account of any 

change in demand post Covid-19, particularly in relation to office space. 

Agri-food and Tourism - The Growth Deal injects much needed capital into projects that will 

facilitate innovation, educate businesses on the benefits of decarbonisation, diversification 

and sustainable business models and encourage skills development and knowledge transfer 

so that North Wales has a product and service offering that can compete with the best in 

the world.  Tourism is an economic engine for Wales and accounts for a quarter of North 

Wales’ economy and employs over 42,000 people. Covid-19 has had a devastating impact on 

the sector’s businesses and their employees and the tourism project within this programme 

is being reviewed to take account of the needs of the sector post Covid-19. 

Innovation in High Value Manufacturing – North Wales is a major manufacturing and 

engineering location with considerable strengths in the aerospace, automotive, food, paper, 

electronics and green energy sectors. There have been significant job losses announced in 

the sector and its supply chain due to both Covid-19 and the UK leaving the European 

Union. The Growth Deal investment capitalises on the strong network of anchor companies 

and world leading expertise to develop a high value manufacturing cluster which will drive 

collaboration to facilitate a low carbon economy, to bring businesses and universities 

together to facilitate the adoption of new innovative technologies and to encourage skills 

development in biotechnology, optics, composites, and hydrogen fuel cells. 

  

Page 29



 
 

15 
 
 

An independent economic partner has been commissioned to develop a report summarising 

the economic situation and recommending recovery interventions for North Wales. Data 

used for the report includes insights from a recent regional survey of businesses, attracting 

over 1,800 responses and an independent report on tourism to identify the strengths, 

weaknesses and opportunities facing this sector. The recommended interventions will focus 

on the near-term economic recovery but also recognise the importance of the Growth Deal 

on the North Wales economy in the long term and throughout the lifetime of the Growth 

Deal. 

The Growth Deal on its own cannot address all the challenges facing the North Wales 

economy. However, such a significant injection of capital investment into the North Wales 

economy through the Growth Deal will be a significant boost to the economy.  

 

The investment 

The investment by UK Government, Welsh Government and the North Wales Economic 

Ambition Board will act as a catalyst and accelerator to unlock investment and aid economic 

recovery in the region. 

The UK and Welsh Governments have each committed to the investment of £120 million 

(total £240 million) over the next 15 years, with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

also committing to secure further public and private sector investment to deliver an overall 

investment of £1billion.  

Through the North Wales Growth Deal, the Welsh and UK Governments and partners are 

embarking on a new strategic relationship that creates a lasting legacy that will transform 

the region in the long term with co-ordination centred across key programmes.  

Breakdown of funding for the North Wales Growth Deal 

UK Government Welsh 

Government 

Other Public 

Sector 

Private Sector TOTAL 

£120m £120m £184.3m £722.1m £1.146.4b 

 

  

Page 30



 
 

16 
 
 

The impact of the Growth Deal 

The following spending objectives have been developed through the creation of a portfolio 

and five programme business cases to support the region to secure the Final Deal 

Agreement with Welsh Government and UK Government.  

Spending Objective 1 -  
Jobs 

To create 3,800 net new jobs in North Wales through the 
Growth Deal by 2036. 
 

Spending Objective 2 – 
GVA 

To support a net additional GVA uplift of £2.2 billion for the 
North Wales Economy through the Growth Deal by 2036. 
 

Spending Objective 3 – 
Investment 

To deliver a total investment of £1 billion in the North Wales 
Economy through the Growth Deal by 2036. 
 

 

All Growth Deal programmes and projects will contribute to achieving the spending 

objectives above. Each of the programmes will generate a set of benefits that have been 

classed as direct, indirect and wider benefits. The precise nature of these vary between the 

programmes. The key types are summarised below, by programme. 

 

Figure 1.1 Benefits Framework 

 

Source: North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

 

Page 31



 
 

17 
 
 

4. The Growth Deal programmes  

The aim of the Growth Deal is to build a more vibrant, sustainable and resilient economy in 

North Wales, building on the region’s strengths to boost productivity while tackling long-

term challenges and economic barriers to delivering inclusive growth. The approach is to 

promote growth in a scalable, inclusive and sustainable way in line with the Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Growth Deal is based on the delivery of 5 

programmes. The programmes have been defined as either high growth programmes or 

enabling programmes. Further details of the Programmes can be found in Annex 1. 

High growth sectors to drive productivity in the region 

The projects within the Growth Deal aimed at increasing the value and impact of high 

growth sectors will be focused on three key programmes:  

 Low carbon energy Programme; 

 Innovation in high value manufacturing Programme; 

 Agri-food and tourism Programme. 

Addressing key barriers to enable and achieve economic growth 

The Growth Deal has identified enabling sectors to tackle key economic barriers and address 

structural issues that have impacted on productivity and jobs. Delivery in these sectors will 

create the appropriate conditions for businesses to invest in the region and for the labour 

market to take advantage of new employment opportunities. A strategic approach will be 

taken with these investments, ensuring that they are well-targeted in order to enable 

economic and employment growth across the region. This will be done in partnership with 

key partners, especially the UK and Welsh Governments.  

The projects within the Growth Deal to address key barriers to growth will be focused on 

two key programmes: 

 Land and Property Programme 

 Digital Programme 

By focusing delivery on these programmes collectively, the Growth Deal will achieve a 

greater impact in terms of our ambition and use of resources than individual projects. 

All programmes and projects within the Growth Deal will contribute to the achievement of 

the Growth Vision and the delivery of benefits for North Wales. The benefits from the 

Growth Deal will support sustainable and inclusive growth across the region – in accordance 

with the Growth Vision as well as the priorities of the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015. 

Page 32



 
 

18 
 
 

The strategic aims to address in each programme, and the types of intervention they are 

intended to facilitate, are summarised below: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



 
 

19 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Governance structure 

The Growth Deal’s governance arrangements enable decisions to be made in an open and 

transparent way for the benefit of the whole of the region.  This section details these 

arrangements and how they contribute to the management of the programme and 

associated risks. 

Listed in Annex 2 are the additional governance documents which will apply to delivery of 

the Growth Deal, over the 15 years. Once adopted, any updating or changes to these 

processes and protocols, need to be agreed by the relevant parties. 

  

Page 34



 
 

20 
 
 

The Economic Ambition Board was established by local authority partners as a joint 

committee in 2019 and is the decision making body for the Growth Deal. It also has a wider 

role to lead regional collaboration more broadly.  The governance arrangements for the 

Economic Ambition Board are underpinned by the partnership agreement ‘Governance 

Agreement 2’ to be adopted on completion of the Final Deal Agreement. 

The Welsh and UK Governments link with the governance structure both formally and 

informally. The Welsh Government, UK Government and the Economic Ambition Board have 

agreed to adopt the City & Growth Deal (C&GD) Governance & Assurance Framework (G&A 

Framework). 

The approach is based on the appropriate and proportionate application of best practice 

Governance, Assurance and Programme & Project Management (PPM), underpinned by an 

Integrated Assurance and Approval Plan (IAAP) in order to balance Government oversight 

and regional delivery partner requirements. 

It is recognised that refinements may be required to the G&A Framework from time to time.  

The Welsh Cities & Growth Implementation Board will review the framework as and when 

required. 

Governance Agreement 2 

Having secured the Growth Deal the Economic Ambition Board partners have agreed to 

enter into a second Governance Agreement (“GA2”) which will support the partnership into 

the next phase of implementation of the Growth Deal and further development of the 

Growth Vision.  

The agreement, which is a legally binding document, defines the role and function of the 

Economic Ambition Board and its use of delegated powers. It also provides for its decision-

making structures and democratic accountability. Provision is made for the commitments of 

the Economic Ambition Board partners to the project and how these are managed and 

apportioned. GA2 provides assurance for the Accountable Body (which is Gwynedd Council 

acting as the representative of the combined local authorities, and the primary interface 

with the Governments) in assuming that role. The underlying arrangements providing for 

legal and compliance matters and arrangements between the parties to GA2 are addressed 

in GA2 (including, amongst other things, governance of the Portfolio Management Office). 

It is a key document providing a clear structure and foundation for taking the 

implementation of the Growth Deal forward at the regional level. 

  

Page 35



 
 

21 
 
 

Portfolio, Programme and Project Management Arrangements (PPM) 

The Economic Ambition Board has adopted a delivery model based on a best practice 

approach to portfolio, programme and project management as set out in ‘Government 

Functional Standard GovS 002: Project Delivery’. Portfolio, programme and project 

management is an integrated way of meeting an organisation’s ambitions, driving better 

decisions and increasing the likelihood of successful outcomes. 

The diagram below sets the Economic Ambition Board’s PPM governance delivery structure 

for the Growth Deal:  

Figure 1.2 Growth Deal Delivery Structure 

 

Source: North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

Strategic and Portfolio Level 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board (Sponsoring Group) – The Economic Ambition 

Board acts as the Sponsoring Group (Organisation) and the Decision-Making Body. All 

authority below this level is delegated to relevant parties as required through a formal 

Economic Ambition Board decision. A member of the Economic Ambition Board will take on 

a Lead Member role for each of the programmes and sit on the relevant Programme Board. 

The Economic Ambition Board will be responsible for the consideration and approval of 

project business cases within the portfolio and with responsibility for delivery delegated to 

the relevant programme and project boards. 

Executive Support Group (Portfolio Board) - This group is the advisory body to the 

Economic Ambition Board but also acts as the Portfolio Board for the Growth Deal to 

support and challenge the Growth Deal Portfolio Director to ensure delivery. The group is 

made up of senior officers from each of the Economic Ambition Board’s partner 

organisations. A member of the Executive Support Group will act as a Senior Responsible 

Owner (SRO) for each of the programmes and lead the relevant Programme Board. 

Page 36



 
 

22 
 
 

Portfolio Director - The Portfolio Director is accountable to the Economic Ambition Board 

for the delivery of the Growth Deal portfolio. 

Programme and Project Level 

Portfolio Management Office (PMO) – The PMO supports and co-ordinates activity across 

the programmes acting as an information hub and ensuring a consistent approach to 

reporting, control of risk and issues. It also acts as a valuable assurance function, providing 

advice and challenge to programmes and projects. Each programme is assigned a 

Programme Manager from within the PMO.  

Programme Boards - Each programme will have a formal Programme Board and an 

appointed Senior Responsible Owner (SRO). These boards will be focused on the 

development (initially) and delivery of the agreed Programme Business Case, with a specific 

focus on the benefits and outcomes to be achieved. Programme Boards escalate to the 

Portfolio Board via the Programme Director.  

Project Boards - All projects within the Growth Deal will be managed via a Project Board 

with appointed SROs and project managers in place to ensure delivery. These boards will be 

focused on the development and delivery of the agreed business case, with a focus on the 

delivery of specified outputs. Projects and Project Boards will be the responsibility of the 

Lead Partner and clear arrangements for the delivery of projects in line with best practice 

will be set out in each project business case. Projects will report through to the relevant 

Programme Board. Terms of reference for Project Boards will be agreed between the Lead 

Partner and the Portfolio Management Office to ensure the appropriate links and reporting 

arrangements between the project and the Programme Board are understood by both 

parties. 

Standing Orders, delegated authority and terms of reference 

The Portfolio Management Office has been established by the Economic Ambition Board to 

deliver the Growth Deal. They are employed by Gwynedd Council as the Accountable Body 

and operate to their standards, procedures and policies.  

As the Accountable Body (Gwynedd Council) will receive and administer the Growth Deal 

funding, which will be received on an annual basis in instalments of up to £16m over the 15 

year Growth Deal term. 

The funding will be committed by means of an award of funding letter (AFL), issued to the 

Accountable Body, Gwynedd Council, from the Housing and Local Government Department 

within Welsh Government.  The Accountable Body will sign this letter on behalf of the 

Economic Ambition Board and the annual cycle of instalments will commence, subject to 

compliance with agreed terms and conditions within the AFL.  

Page 37



 
 

23 
 
 

Release of the annual funding instalments will follow the process as outlined in Appendix 3 – 

Annual Funding Approval Process and will be subject to satisfactory assurance and 

monitoring as set out in the integrated Assurance and Approval Plan (IAAP).  

Project business cases will be approved by the Economic Ambition Board and will 

demonstrate the feasibility, viability and value for money required within the five case 

Better Business Case methodology and approach.  Governance Agreement 2 sets out the 

authority delegated to the Economic Ambition Board by the partner organisations and what 

authority is delegated to the Portfolio Director. Terms of reference for the Economic 

Ambition Board are included as part of Governance Agreement 2. 

Resourcing 

The Economic Ambition Board’s Portfolio Management Office has been established to 

deliver the Growth Deal. The Portfolio Management Office was established in January 2020 

and is to be funded for the first three years of its existence by the Welsh European Funding 

Office, and afterwards will be self sustaining as set out in the Portfolio Business case. The 

office oversees the delivery of the Growth Deal’s programmes and projects. Led by the 

Portfolio Director, the team includes experienced programme and project managers as well 

as operational staff. The team is supported specifically by legal and financial resources 

provided through the Accountable Body as well as a wide range of additional resources 

drawn from across the partnership.   

Decision Making Process 

UK Government and the Welsh Government 

Both the UK Government and the Welsh Government are accountable for ensuring the most 

appropriate use of Government funding for the Growth Deal 

The UK Government has allocated City and Growth Deal funding for the Welsh Government 

to administer, allowing funding from both Governments to be managed and released 

through a single agreed process.  The funding will be paid to the Accountable Body of the 

Growth Deal (Gwynedd Council) on an annual basis over the lifetime of the Growth Deal on 

a flat profile.  

Monitoring & evaluation of the progress of the Growth Deal will be an ongoing activity and 

an annual review of progress will be required prior to the release of annual funding. This will 

take the form of an assessment of a range of documentation and presentation to the Welsh 

Cities & Growth Implementation Board (WCGIB) by the Portfolio Management Office. 

Decisions as to the release of funding to the Growth Deal will be taken by Ministers of the 

Welsh Government and UK Government annually. These decisions are informed by 

recommendations made by the Welsh Cities & Growth Implementation Board (WCGIB.  

Page 38



 
 

24 
 
 

The annual funding approval process is set out in Annex 3. 

While overarching accountability for the administration of funding rests with the Permanent 

Secretary for the Welsh Government, members of the Welsh Cities & Growth 

Implementation Board need to ensure that they are acting in accordance with the principles 

in Managing Welsh Public Money8 (in the case of Welsh Government officials) and HMT’s 

Managing Public Money9 (for UK Government officials). This includes the need to assure 

themselves that the use of the funding offers good value for money and that it will be used 

with due regularity and propriety.   

Welsh Government is currently setting out a separate protocol which will relate to certain 

aspects of the Growth Deal such as confidentiality, data protection, dispute resolution and 

assurance between Welsh Government and the partners in the region. 

Economic Ambition Board 

The Growth Deal partners are committed to putting in place robust decision-making and 

financial management processes to ensure that public money is spent responsibly and 

accounted for.  The Economic Ambition Board is a Local Authority executive joint committee 

and as such is subject to the requirements in relation to transparency, accountability, 

standards of governance, decision making and conduct which apply to such a body. 

Decisions within the Economic Ambition Board’s governance framework can be categorised 

at three levels: 

 Portfolio Director Matters – decisions that the Programme Director can make 

 Joint Committee Matters – decisions that the Economic Ambition Board can make 

 Reserved Matters – decisions that would require separate agreement of all partners 

All decisions related to the delivery of Growth Deal as set out within this document within 

the agreed funding envelope for the partnership will be either Portfolio Director matters or 

Joint Committee matters. 

The Economic Ambition Board operates as a Joint Committee whilst having majority voting 

will seek to establish a consensus of all the partners around all decisions relating to the 

Growth Deal.  

  

                                                                 
 

8 https://gov.wales/managing-welsh-public-money 

9 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money 

Page 39

https://gov.wales/managing-welsh-public-money
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money


 
 

25 
 
 

It is recognised that the Economic Ambition Board’s powers and duties relate to activities 

set out in the Growth Deal.  Each constituent partner’s decision-making in relation to its 

own financial commitments will not be subject to Economic Ambition Board approval. The 

Economic Ambition Board working with the Accountable Body does however have a 

monitoring and assurance role with respect to the Growth Deal funding to ensure that it is 

spent in line with the Growth Deal objectives. 

 

Assurance Process 

Assurance provides an independent and objective examination of a portfolio, programme or 

project at a particular point in its lifecycle.  

The Welsh Government, UK Government and Portfolio Management Office have agreed to 

utilise the Welsh Government’s Office for Project Delivery (OPD) or any successor to the 

OPD to ensure that consistent assurance standards are delivered across the Growth Deal’s 

portfolio. This supports all those responsible for successful delivery, providing funders and 

other stakeholders with the confidence that the Growth Deal can deliver to time, budget 

and quality. 

The Growth Deal must undertake suitable assurance and produce and implement an 

Integrated Assurance and Approval Plan (IAAP. 

An IAAP sets out the planned Governance Assurance and Audit activities at Portfolio, 

Programme and Project level for the Growth Deal. An IAAP has been agreed by all three 

parties ahead of the Final Deal Agreement and will be subject to review on an annual basis. 

An Accounting Officer Review (AOR) is a Business Case assurance review that focusses on 

the achievement of value for money from public spend and addresses the responsibilities 

placed on Accounting Officers.  

An AOR has been completed as part of both governments’ assurance processes ahead of 

this Final Deal Agreement and future AORs may be undertaken during the term of the 

Growth Deal. 

The Welsh Government and UK Government have agreed to collaborate in using the Welsh 

Government’s AOR process for the Growth Deal’s Portfolio Business Case. This AOR is part 

of the Approval Process required for the Final Deal Agreement for the Growth Deal. 

  

Page 40



 
 

26 
 
 

Project approval process 

The Growth Deal is agreed on the basis of a portfolio business case and five programme 

business cases. Once the Final Deal Agreement has been signed, project business cases can 

be brought forward for the Economic Ambition Board to consider. 

Full (5 Case Model) business cases will be developed for each project within Growth Deal in 

line with the ‘Better Business Case’ guidance developed by Welsh Government and HM 

Treasury. 

Preparing a Project Business Case using the five Case model provides decision makers and 

stakeholders with a proven framework for structured ‘thinking’ and assurance that the 

project provides and strategic fit, maximise public value, is commercially viable, is affordable 

and is fundable over time. 

Project business cases will be required to demonstrate how they deliver against the 

objectives and aspirations of the Growth Deal and specifically the relevant programme 

business case. 

It is recognised that through the development and agreement of portfolio and programme 

business cases between the Economic Ambition Board and UK/Welsh Government that the 

strategic case for projects will have been established. 

Each project business case will be subject to independent gateway reviews at agreed points 

as agreed with the UK Government and Welsh Government in line with the Integrated 

Assurance and Approval Plan.  The Welsh Cities & Growth Implementation Board may also 

commission additional Assurance and / or assessment of Business Cases as required. E.g. 

where the Project Business Case and / or level of assurance undertaken is considered 

insufficient. 

Project business cases will first be considered by the relevant Programme Board. Business 

cases will only be presented to the Economic Ambition Board following endorsement by the 

Portfolio Board and the Programme Board and the completion of required gateway reviews. 

The PMO retains the right to commission external reviews of project business cases where 

required. 

  

Page 41



 
 

27 
 
 

Change Management 

A Change Management Plan, together with a Dispute Resolution Plan, has been developed 

for the Growth Deal. Change management activities for the Growth Deal will be primarily 

managed via the Programme Boards and relevant Project Board within tolerances delegated 

by the Economic Ambition Board upon consideration of the project business case.  

Significant changes outside these tolerances would need to be escalated to the Portfolio 

Board. Recommendations will then be presented to the Economic Ambition Board for a 

decision.  Examples of such decisions may include changes to cost, scope, timescales and 

benefits. Any significant changes beyond the agreed governance framework for the Growth 

Deal, specifically changes that would lead to increase cost for the Economic Ambition Board 

partners, would be considered a reserved matter and require the approval of all the 

individual partners. 

Any new or replacement projects to be brought forward for consideration must 

demonstrate delivery against the relevant programme business case and the objectives of 

the portfolio business case. Where those projects are within the existing agreed financial 

envelope for the partnership, those projects would be a matter for the Economic Ambition 

Board to decide. 

Projects that fall outside the remit of an agreed programme business case or those that 

would exceed the agreed financial envelope would be considered a ‘reserved matter’ for the 

Economic Ambition Board partners. 

 

Role of members/accountability 

It is the duty of all Economic Ambition Board members to act in the best interests of the 

Growth Deal region.  All private and third sector members will also be required to act in the 

interests of the Growth Deal region; foregoing any interest (if any) their own organisation 

may have in the Growth Deal and any related projects. 

All members are expected to comply with the code of conducts of their respective 

organisations, the Economic Ambition Board’s Conflict of Interest Policy and the values and 

aspirations of the Growth Deal. 

Government representatives may attend in observer/advisory capacity and are not bound 

by the requirements of the Economic Ambition Board’s members. 

  

Page 42



 
 

28 
 
 

6. Role of the Accountable Body 

For the duration of the Growth Deal, the accountable body shall be responsible for receiving 

and allocating funds for and on behalf of the Economic Ambition Board.  The Accountable 

Body shall 

 Act diligently and in good faith in all its dealings with the other parties and it shall 
use its reasonable endeavours to discharge the parties' obligations in relation to the 
implementation of the Growth Deal and delivery of the Growth Vision. 

 Act as the primary interface for the Economic Ambition Board with Welsh 
Government, and UK Government and any other body as necessary in relation to the 
implementation of the Growth Deal. 

 Hold any funds received directly from Welsh Government, and UK Government, the 
Economic Ambition Board partners and/or any other sources (if any) in relation to 
the Growth Deal and only to use and release such funds as agreed in accordance with 
the terms of the Growth Deal; 

 Government funding for the Growth Deal will be released as a payment on an annual 
basis subject to satisfactory quarterly progress reports and relevant assurance 
activity.  The legally binding award of funding letter (AFL) to the Accountable Body 
sets out the terms and conditions of the funding to be provided.  An Implementation 
Plan setting out the indicative process and timeline for the procurement and 
implementation of the Growth Deal is attached to the AFL. 

 Hold land and/ or any other assets procured under any project on trust for the 
Economic Ambition Board partners pursuant to the terms of the relevant Project 
Business Case. 

 Without assuming responsibility for the delivery of any specific Growth Deal project 
and within the limitation of the funding provided to it (as part of the Joint-committee 
Costs), provide the support services required to facilitate the work of the Economic 
Ambition Board. 

 Without assuming responsibility for the delivery of any specific Growth Deal project, 
provide for the Accountable Body’s Chief Finance Officer ("s151 Officer") and 
Monitoring Officer (or their nominated deputies) (the "Monitoring Officer") to act, 
respectively, as the s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer to the Joint-committee; and 

 Have responsibility for, but not limited to administering the financial affairs of the 
Joint-committee (and its sub committees and groups established), including 
accounting for VAT, keeping financial records, ensuring that the annual accounts of 
the Joint Committee are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting and making arrangements for the external audit of the Joint 
Committee. 

 Employ the Portfolio Management Office to deliver the Growth Deal. 

Page 43



 
 

29 
 
 

7. Monitoring and evaluation 

A Monitoring and Evaluation Plan has been developed for the Growth Deal. Programme and 

project performance will be monitored on a monthly basis through the relevant programme 

and project boards with formal quarterly reports submitted to the Portfolio Board and the 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board, as well as the UK and Welsh Governments. 

The Economic Ambition Board has an adopted Risk Framework for the delivery of the Growth 
Deal. The Framework sets out how risks and issues will be managed at the appropriate level 
across the portfolio with clear escalation processes in place including the escalation of risk to 
UK Government and Welsh Government as appropriate. The Framework sets out the three 
levels of risk associated with the delivery of the Growth Deal – portfolio level risks, 
programme level risks and project level risks.  

The key components of the Monitoring and Evaluation Plan are set out below: 

 Monthly Highlight Reports for all programmes and projects; 

 Formal Quarterly Reports to the Economic Ambition Board, UK Government and 
Welsh Government; 

 Formal Annual Report to Economic Ambition Board, the Board’s partners, UK 
Government and Welsh Government; 

 Independent economic impact evaluation to be undertaken every 3-5 years against 
suite of indicators agreed with UK Government and Welsh Government. 

 Wider benefits to be achieved through procurement, particularly social and 
community value will be monitored and evaluated to ensure maximum benefit is 
derived to the region from such activity. 

 The Economic Ambition Board will work with the Welsh Government to ensure that 
evaluation against the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 is a key 
component of all monitoring and evaluation activities. 

 The Economic Ambition Board is committed to developing an appropriate feedback 
mechanism for the Growth Deal with both governments to ensure lessons learned 
during the delivery of the Growth Deal are captured and shared. 

 

8. Communications Protocol 

A Communications Protocol is being agreed between both governments and the Economic 

Ambition Board to effectively communicate key messages and to ensure a joined-up and 

consistent approach for the promotion of the Growth Deal. 

 

Page 44



 
 

30 
 
 

9. Delivering for North Wales 

The Growth Deal will continue to evolve over its 15-year lifetime and this Final Deal 

Agreement sets out the principles and processes relating to governance and assurance 

which have or will be put in place to ensure that the Growth Deal remains relevant and 

achievable. 

All signatories look forward to working together for the people and businesses of North 

Wales.  

 

  

Page 45



 
 

31 
 
 

Annex 1 – Proposed Growth Deal Projects  

 Low carbon energy Programme 

 Morlais 

 Trawsfynydd Power Station 

 Low Carbon Centre of Excellence 

 Smart Local Energy 

 Transport Decarbonisation 

 Innovation in high value manufacturing Programme 

 Centre for Engineering Biotechnology 

 Enterprise Engineering and Optics Centre 

 Agri-food and tourism Programme 

 Glynllifon Rural Economy Hub 

 Llysfasi Carbon Neutral Centre 

 Tourism TALENT Network 

 Land and Property Programme 

 Regional Land and Property  

 Holyhead Gateway 

 Digital Programme 

 Digital Connectivity 

 Digital Signal Processing Centre 

 

  

Page 46



 
 

32 
 
 

Annex 2 – Additional Governance Documents to 
the FDA 

 

- Governance & Assurance Processes 

- IAAP 

- Monitoring & Evaluation Plan 

- PMO Portfolio Risk Register  

- Benefits Realisation Strategy 

- Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

- Equality Impact Assessment 

- Communications Protocol 

- Change Management Strategy 

- Implementation Plan 

- Procurement Strategy 

- Financial Plan 

- Benefit – Cost Ratio Assessment 

- Capital & Operational Revenue Costs 

- Governance Assurance 2 – Arrangements between Local Authorities partners 

- Dispute Resolution plan 

 

  

Page 47



 
 

33 
 
 

Annex 3 – Annual Funding Approval Process  

 

 

Start

WCGIB Consider 
Deal Progress

WCGIB 
Content?

Deal to 
present @ 

WCGIB

Y

N

Y

N

Deal to Provide 
Annual Report to 

WG

WG/UKG CoG 
Review Progress

CRO Team Draft 
Paper for WGDB & 

WCGIB

MA 
Approved?

WG Draft & Submit 
MA

WG/UKG CoG 
Conclude 

Issues

WG Grant Award 
Drafted & Issued

Funding Released

WCGIB / WG
Conclude

Issues

UKG Draft & Submit 
Note

Noted?
WCGIB / UKG 

Conclude 
Issues

N

Glossary
Deal – Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD) / North Wales Growth Deal (NWGD) / Mid Wales Growth Deal (MWGD)
CoG – Co-ordinating Officials Group
JC – Joint Committee
FDA – Final Deal Agreement
IAAP – Integrated Assurance and Approval Plan
CRO – WG Chief Regional Officer
WGDB – WG Directors Board
WCGIB – Welsh Cities & Growth Deals Implementation Board (Joint WG/UKG)
MA – Ministerial Advice
LGF – WG Local Government Finance

WGDB Consider 
Progress

Deal to provide an annual report to WG via CRO – (as per the format used within the 
Region)

WG/UKG CoG to explore any issues and draft paper for WGDB & WCGIB consideration

Deal invited to present progress to WCGIB
Note that the WCGIB may need to be extended to accommodate

Any outstanding issues to be explored and concluded by WG/UKG CoG – re-presented 
to WCGIB for ratification

Annual Funding via WG LGF – WG Ministers to Approve and UKG Ministers to Note

WG LGF to process once WG and UKG Ministers Content

Any Issues to be resolved by WG / UKG – WCGIB to be sighted if required

Required Documentation:
Deal Annual Report

IAAP & Assurance Summary
Portfolio / Programme  BC and Annual 

Assessment
Latest Gate 0 Report
Implementation Plan

Monitoring & Evaluation Plan

WGDB note progress / Recommendations for WCGIB

 

 

Page 48



 
 

 

REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 

5th FEBRUARY, 2021 
 

 

TITLE: Portfolio Highlight Report – February 2021 

AUTHOR: Hedd Vaughan-Evans, Operations Manager 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to update the North Wales Economic Ambition Board on progress 

since the completion of the Final Deal Agreement in December 2020. 
 

1.2. Consideration of the Portfolio Highlight Report by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board is a 
condition of the first tranche of Growth Deal funding. Future reports on Growth Deal progress will 
be through a formal quarterly report. The first report will cover Quarter 4 2020-21. 

 
2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. That the Board notes the Portfolio Highlight Report for February 2021 and the progress made since 

the completion of the Final Deal Agreement in December 2020. 
 
2.2.  That the Board approves the submission of the Portfolio Highlight Report for February 2021 to 

Welsh Government and UK Government. 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. As stated in the report. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. In December 2020, the NWEAB and the Welsh and UK Governments agreed the Final Deal 

Agreement for the North Wales Growth Deal. 
 
4.2.  The Portfolio Highlight Report provides an update on progress since signing the deal, an overview 

of the current position of each programme and project within the deal and an updated timetable 
for delivery.  The report focuses in particular on the timetable for the consideration of Outline 
Business Cases by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board.  

 
4.3. Consideration of the Portfolio Highlight Report by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board and 

submission to Welsh Government and UK Government is a requirement to enable the drawdown 
of the first tranche of funding. 

 
4.4. The Portfolio Highlight Report is included in Appendix 1. 
 

  

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

APPENDICES: 
 

Appendix 1 Portfolio Highlight Report – February 2021 

 

 

STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority: 
 
“One of the key roles of the Ambition Board is to monitor progress and delivery within the 
portfolio of programmes and projects. This report provides an appropriate overview to 
support that work.” 
 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer): 
 
“As paragraph 1.2 notes, this report is critical to ensure the first grant instalment is 
received from Government in March.” 
 
 
 

Page 50



NORTH WALES 
GROWTH DEAL

PORTFOLIO 
HIGHLIGHT REPORT

5 FEBRUARY 2021

P
age 51



Content

1. Progress update since Final Deal

2. AOR Recommendations

3. Programme and Project Update
• Agrifood and Tourism Programme
• Low Carbon Energy Programme 
• Land and Property Programme
• Digital Connectivity Programme
• Innovation in High Value Manufacturing Programme

4. Project OBC Pipeline 2021

5. Programme Delivery Plan – January 2021 Update

6. Project Glossary

2

P
age 52



Progress Update since the Final Deal was signed in 
December 2020
• Grant Offer Letter – ongoing discussions with Welsh Government on the Grant Offer 

Letter to enable the first funding drawdown.

• Gateway Reviews – three projects have booked gateway reviews. Morlais (February), 
Enterprise Engineering and Optics (March) and Glynllifon Rural Economy Hub (April). 

• Website and Branding Tender – Following a procurement exercise through 
Sell2Wales, Tinint have been selected to develop the new website and branding.

• Recruitment – appointed a Digital Connectivity Project Manager and European 
Funding Project Manager. A revised structure for the Portfolio Management Office to 
include procurement resource has been agreed with WEFO. Recruitment to final posts 
to take place in January/February.

P
age 53



Progress Update since the Final Deal was signed in 
December 2020
• AOR Recommendations – the team are working through the 9 recommendations. 

• Procurement Activity – Menter Mon have commenced the principal contractor 
procurement for the Morlais project. During January 2021, the Portfolio Management 
Office issued three briefs on Sell2Wales to support project development relating to 
the Smart Local Energy project, the Transport Decarbonisation project and the Llysfasi
Net Zero Farm project.

• Baseline Review – updated in January 2021 to confirm timetable for Outline Business 
Cases during 2020 calendar year. 

P
age 54



AOR Recommendations
AOR Recommendation RAG Comments

1 - That the WCGIB share the AOR report with the Mid 
Wales Growth Deal and the Swansea Bay City Deal

Update requested from Welsh Government.

2 - That the release of annual C&GD funding is linked to an 
annual submission of an updated PoBC

The Portfolio Management Office is planning for an annual 
update and submission of the Portfolio Business Case.

3 - That the PoMO seeks further direction and advice 
from EcAd (and/or the UKG equivalent) on the approach 
to take with regards the calculation, presentation and 
testing of project BCRs

The Portfolio Management Office is engaging with 
economists from EcAd on the development of project 
business cases.

4 - That the individual Land & Property and Digital 
Connectivity projects are presented individually and 
consistently throughout the next iteration of the PoBC

This will be actioned in the 2021 update of the Portfolio
Business Case. These projects are being reported on 
individually in this highlight report.

5 - That the next iteration of the PoBC is updated to 
include the identification of project level community 
benefits, and identified opportunities for collaborative 
project-level procurements

This will be actioned in the 2021 update of the Portfolio
Business Case.

P
age 55



AOR Recommendations
AOR Recommendation RAG Comments

6 - That the next iteration of the PoBC is updated to 
include project level operational revenue profiles (once 
identified) over the lifetime of projects, together with 
associated commentary

This will be actioned in the 2021 update of the Portfolio
Business Case.

7 - In the next iteration of the PoBC, separately specify 
individual public sector funding bodies and their 
contribution in Table 5.3

This will be actioned in the 2021 update of the Portfolio
Business Case.

8 - That the PoBC is updated to include a holding position 
on NDR until discussions have taken place and an 
agreement has been reached with LGSF colleagues

This is being actioned. Discussions ongoing between the 
Section 151 Officer and Welsh Government Local 
Government Strategic Finance.

9 - That the IAAP is updated to include more frequent 
reviews at portfolio and programme level

The IAAP is currently being updated following a meeting 
with the Welsh Government Integrated Assurance Hub in 
January.

P
age 56



Agrifoodand Tourism ProgrammeUpdate

Project Updated 
Timetable for 
OBC

Risk Project 
Maturity

Timetable Commentary

Glynllifon Rural 
Economy Hub

June 2021 Project OBC scheduled for development between January and March 2021, with a Gateway Review 
planned for late March before presentation to NWEAB for approval in June 2021. Efforts are already 
underway to line up strong and innovative private sector partners (e.g. Vertical Farming, Seaweed Farming) 
to participate in the Hub from its launch, alongside other stakeholders such as Farming Connect. 

Llysfasi Net Zero 
Farm

September 2021 The project has been slightly delayed due to capacity issues at Llysfasi. Participation in the Welsh 
Government Net Zero Business Innovation competition will mean a slight delay, however it will also boost 
expertise and develop/strengthen SME links and will benefit the project. 

Tourism Academy March 2022 With the impact of COVID19 on the tourism, hospitality and education sectors, this project has been under 
review since March 2020 while clarity emerges on the impact of the pandemic. Fundamentally, the case for 
change remains strong and project partners (private and public) remain keen to proceed. GLLM is 
continuing to engage with existing gateway partners and is also widening and strengthening the network 
across the region. 

P
age 57



Project Updated 
Timetable for 
OBC

Risk Project 
Maturity

Timetable Commentary

Morlais May 2021 Currently on track for NWEAB OBC decision by May 2021 and FBC decision by Sep 2021. Menter Môn aim 
to make Final Investment Decision by September 2021, begin capital expenditure in November 2021 and 
complete infrastructure works by Q4 2023.  The headline risks to achieving targets are delays to consent 
decisions and / or a limited consent that impacts the viability of the scheme (both risks being managed by 
Menter Môn through the consenting process).

Low Carbon 
Centre of 
Excellence

Autumn 2021 OBC development is underway with target date of July 2021 for gateway review followed by submission to 
NWEAB during autumn 2021. Bangor University Project Board established in Jan 2021. Details regarding 
whole-Project schedule, match-funding arrangements and consenting arrangements to be addressed as a 
priority. 

Smart Local 
Energy

2022 (TBC) Project brief approved by Programme Board. Next step is to deliver workshop to undertake strategic 
assessment and determine case for change and spending objectives. Strategic Outline Case development 
to follow. 

Trawsfynydd 
Power Station

2022-23 (TBC) Establishment of Cwmni Egino announced by Welsh Government on the 1st October 2020. Political 
support for the project and SMR technology. Next steps include appointment of company leads and 
engagement with key partners (including the NWEAB) regarding project development.

Transport 
Decarbonisation

Dec 2021 The Transport Decarbonisation project is a regional project that could support several integrated 
opportunities across the region. The feasibility of ‘Hydrogen Hubs’ at Deeside and Holyhead  are being 
investigated through grant-funded OBCs and feasibility studies.

Low Carbon Energy ProgrammeUpdate

P
age 58



Land and Property ProgrammeUpdate
Project Updated 

Timetable for 
OBC

Risk Project 
Maturity

Timetable Commentary

Holyhead Gateway July – Sept 2021 Welsh Government (WG) have commissioned an Economic Impact Assessment on the benefit of the Port to 
region/Wales/UK – due by end of March 2021. Costs to deliver the full scope of the Holyhead Gateway 
project is beyond the identified funding from the EAB and Stena. (Breakwater and Land Reclamation).

Former North 
Wales Hospital, 
Denbigh

April – Sept 2021 The current planning applications are likely to be decided by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) in early 
2021. Pending the obtaining of planning consent then the preparation of the Outline Business Case will 
commence.  

Key Strategic Site, 
Bodelwyddan

Sept 2021 –
March 2022

The expiration of the Outline Planning Consent (OPC) in March 2021 and the timescale to assess the 
application to extend the life of the OPC by two years is pressing. The decision will be made by LPA Planning 
Committee. Failure to extend the life of the OPC could result in the project being delayed pending the 
adoption of the revised Denbighshire LDP scheduled for 2023.

Warren Hall, 
Broughton

Jan – June 2022 Flintshire LDP inspection to commence in Feb 2021 with possible adoption by end of 2021. Draft Statement 
of Common Ground between NWEAB, WG and FCC in process to support the inclusion of the site in the 
LDP. WG/NWEAB Collaboration Agreement substantially agreed subject WG legal approval.

Wrexham Gateway July – Sept 2022 Confirmation of private sector investment plans and indicative timeline to be confirmed.  Potential to 
develop the site in advance of the adoption of Wrexham LDP and the improvement of J4 A483 unlikely. The 
revised timetable reflects the risk that that no consents will be permitted until the new junction 4 is 
delivered.

Parc Bryn Cegin, 
Bangor

Sept – Dec 2021 WG Collaboration Agreement substantially complete subject to WG Legal approval. WG holding early-stage 
discussions with private developers for the delivery of advance employment accommodation.  

P
age 59



Digital Connectivity ProgrammeUpdate
Project Updated 

Timetable for 
OBC

Risk Project 
Maturity

Timetable Commentary

Connected 
Corridor

June 2021 The new project board will be undertaking strategic case workshops this month. External specialists will be 
procured to support technology options appraisals, economic case and commercial case development. 
Support for the project’s concept is strong across the board, which includes some partners who are new to 
the Growth Deal, including NMWTRA, North Wales Police and Network Rail.

Last few percent 
%

June 2021 UKG Gigabit Programme will affect the scope and design of this project and details of how this will be 
delivered in Wales are anticipated this quarter. Several options for delivery are recognised and the OBC is 
to be developed in early in 2021. A group of officers from the six Las has been meeting throughout 2020 to 
review progress with rural broadband deployment and review options for NWEAB intervention. The 
Programme Board has provisionally approved this group to become the Project Board.

Competitive 
Connectivity –
full fibre at key 
sites

December 2021 UKG Gigabit Programme may affect the scope and design of this project and details of how this will be 
delivered in Wales are anticipated this quarter. Several options for delivery are recognised and the OBC is 
planned to be developed late in 2021. A project board has not yet been established but this will follow 
once boards have been set up for the initial two NWEAB led projects.

Connected 
Campus

December 2021 Concept will need to be developed in the summer with a project board to be established. Work on the 
Connected Corridors project will add value to this project with potential similar technology to be deployed 
and commercial models. The option to deliver the two projects in tandem may be considered by the 
Programme Board and Corridors project board.

DSP Centre June 2021 The DSP Project business case is currently on track with the OBC developing well, the Strategic Case has 
been drafted and the Economic case is currently under development. The relevant workshops for these 
cases will be scheduled shortly. The proposed new governance structure at Bangor University includes a 
specific DSP Growth Deal project board will help accelerate the development of the OBC for a proposed 
gateway review in April/May. 

P
age 60



Innovation in High Value Manufacturing
ProgrammeUpdate

Project Updated 
Timetable for 
OBC

Risk Project 
Maturity

Timetable Commentary

Centre for 
Environmental 
Biotechnology

January 2022 Project Concept is ready to progress to the development of an OBC.
The first meeting of the project board held January 2021 – the project board will develop a risk register, 
support the development of the business case and strengthen links to industry. An initial gateway review 
scheduled for early May 2021, further OBC development throughout 2021, with the Gateway Review 2 
scheduled for November. Project aiming for NWEAB approval in January 2022.

Enterprise 
Engineering & 
Optics Centre 
(EEOC)

June 2021 The OBC is scheduled for development through the 5 cases approach between January and March 2021, 
with a Gateway Review planned for late May before presentation to NWEAB for approval in June 2021. 
Due to the multi-sectoral aspects to the project and the critical need to ascertain routes to market, the 
OBC process is being kick-started with an additional gateway review scheduled for March focused on 
these areas. 

P
age 61



Project OBC Pipeline 2021
Q1 2021/22 Q2 2021/22 Q3 2021/22

Digital Programme

Land and Property 

Agrifood and 
Tourism 

Innovation in High 
Value Manufacturing 

Low Carbon Energy 

Digital Signalling 
Processing Centre

Competitive
Connectivity 

Connected 
Corridor 

Last few % 

Morlais

Low Carbon Economy Centre of Excellence
Transport 

Decarbonisation

Holyhead Gateway

Former North Wales Hospital

Parc Bryn Cegin

Enterprise 
Engineering & 
Optics Centre

Llysfasi Net Zero 
Farm

Glynllifon Rural 
Economy Hub 

Wrexham Gateway

April May June July August September October November December

Connected Campus

Bodelwyddan Strategic Site

P
age 62



ProgrammeDelivery Plan
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Digital Programme

Land and Property 

Agrifood and 
Tourism 

Innovation in High 
Value Manufacturing 

Low Carbon Energy 

Digital Signalling Processing Centre

Competitive Connectivity (Full Fibre)

Connected Campus (Adv. Connectivity)

Connected Corridor 

Last few % 

Morlais

Trawsfynydd Power Station

Smart Local Energy Network

Low Carbon Economy Centre of Excellence

Transport Decarbonisation

Holyhead Gateway

Denbigh Hospital Site

Wrexham Gateway

Bodelwyddan Strategic Site

Warren Hall Strategic Site

Centre for Biotechnology

Enterprise Engineering & Optics Centre

The Llysfasi Net Zero Farm

Glynllifon Rural Economy Hub 

Tourism and Talent Network

Business Case Development and Approval Phase* Procurement and Project Delivery Phase** Operational and Benefits Realisation Phase

**Includes approval of FBC post procurement* Approval of OBC pre procurement

Parc Bryn Cegin

January 2021 Update

P
age 63



Programme Project Sponsor Summary
Digital Competitive Connectivity – full 

fibre at key sites
NWEAB This project will deliver full fibre connectivity (gigabit capable) to 28 key business sites across North Wales.

Connected Campus NWEAB The project will accelerate the development of infrastructure for 19 key regional economic sites.

Connected Corridor NWEAB In total, 156km of road and rail corridor will be connected to 5G/Low Power Wireless Access Networks, along the A55 corridor and adjacent mainline rail
route.

Connecting the last few % NWEAB This project targets universal superfast coverage across North Wales, which have yet to be served by other means and cannot obtain speeds of at least
30Mbps (download).

Digital Signal Processing Centre 
Project (DSP)

Bangor University The project will allow the DSP Centre to expand its presence and remit, integrating fully with the National Strategy Project (NSP) and enable the scaling of
key assets including a 5G testbed, research capacity and state-of-the-art equipment.

Project  Glossary

Land and 
property

Holyhead Gateway Stena Line Future proof the Holyhead Port by providing new deep-water heavy loading and cruise facilities, improved vehicular access, guaranteeing the future of
the breakwater and providing for the demands of regional energy projects.

Wrexham Gateway NWEAB Delivery of primary services to enable the site to be brought to the market for sale and development.

Warren Hall Strategic Site NWEAB Delivery of primary services to enable the 65-hectare mixed use site to be bought to the market for sale and then development by the private sector.

Bodelwyddan Strategic Site NWEAB Delivery of primary services to enable the mixed-use commercial and residential development site to be brought to the market for development.

Former North Wales Hospital Site NWEAB The Growth Deal funding will assist in the delivery of a cleared and remediated site with primary services to bring forward a mixed-use commercial and
residential development

Parc Bryn Cegin Strategic Site NWEAB Provide industrial floor space to meet known demand for units.

Innovation in 
High value 
manufacturing

Centre for Environmental 
Biotechnology (CEB)

Bangor University The Centre for Engineering Biotechnology will be a world-leading centre in the discovery and characterisation of novel extremophilic enzymes of
industrial relevance. The Centre for Engineering Biotechnology will provide a strong foundation for attracting world-leading researchers, significant public
and commercial research funding, and inward investment to Wales.

Enterprise Engineering & Optics 
Centre 

Glyndwr University The Enterprise Engineering & Optics Centre will provide facilities targeted to boost high-level skills development for the region and enable SME’s and
large businesses to work in partnership with Wrexham Glyndwr University on commercially driven research and development in optics, composites and
hydrogen fuel cells.

P
age 64



Project  Glossary
Programme Project Sponsor Summary
Low carbon 
energy

Morlais Menter Môn Investing in the infrastructure that connects the Morlais Zone with the electricity grid system, and preparing the site for private sector developers who
will lease parts of the zone for deploying their tidal energy technologies.

Trawsfynydd Power Station Cwmni Egino The site is uniquely placed for a ‘First of A Kind’ deployment of a Small Modular Reactor (SMR) or Advanced Modular Reactor (AMR. Alongside the public
and private sector the Growth Deal will contribute funding towards enabling infrastructure for this development.

Low Carbon Energy Centre of 
Excellence

Bangor University Investing in the development of facilities at Bangor University and Menai Science Park, enhancing the North Wales and UK capabilities for innovation in
low carbon energy and related areas, helping to create the conditions for new inward investment and business growth in the low carbon energy supply
chain in North Wales.

Smart Local Energy  NWEAB To help achieve renewable energy, decarbonisation and local ownership targets, the project will support innovative enabling projects and demonstrators
that overcome market failures and unlock private and community sector investments in smart local energy solutions.

Transport Decarbonisation NWEAB Support delivery of a demonstrator project involving the production of green hydrogen from low carbon energy sources and its use within regional
transport networks.

Agri-food and 
tourism

Tourism TALENT Network Grŵp Llandrillo
Menai

Future-proofing the pipeline of skills provision and increase commercial benefits from one of the most established sectors in the region. The talent
network will stimulate public-private collaboration to coordinate action on skills and product development to transform and accelerate the growth of the
tourism and hospitality sector in the region.

Glynllifon Rural Economy Hub Grŵp Llandrillo 
Menai

The vision is to create a distinctive, world-class Rural Economy Hub at Glynllifon, offering a range of facilities and services to strengthen and enhance the
regional economy, specifically through growing the food and drink sector.

The Llysfasi Net Zero Farm Coleg Cambria Llysfasi Carbon Neutral Centre aims to lead North Wales to a resilient future where carbon neutral land management is at the centre of a developing
renewable energy sector supporting a sustainable, thriving and healthy community covering the rural/urban mix of the region.

P
age 65



 
 

 

REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 

5th FEBRUARY, 2021 
 

 

TITLE: North Wales Growth Deal – Funding and Business Case Processes 

AUTHOR: Hedd Vaughan-Evans, Operations Manager 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to update the North Wales Economic Ambition Board on the relevant 

processes for approving project business cases and securing the annual drawdown of funding. 
 

2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. That the Board notes the contents of the report. 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. As stated in the report. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. In December 2020, the NWEAB and the Welsh and UK Governments agreed the Final Deal 

Agreement for the North Wales Growth Deal. 
 
4.2.  This report provides an overview of the process agreed by UK and Welsh Government for the 

annual funding approval and the approval of individual business cases.  
 
 Annual Funding – Approval Process 
 
4.3. To secure the annual drawdown of funding the North Wales Economic Ambition Board will need 

to demonstrate the progress made each year through the submission of a set of key documents 
to both governments. These documents include: 

 

 Annual Report on the Deal; 

 Updated Integrated Assurance and Approvals Plan 

 Updated Portfolio and Programme Business Cases 

 Latest Gateway 0 Report for the Growth Deal 

 Updated Implementation Plan 

 Updated Monitoring and Evaluation Plan 

 
4.4. Once submitted, both Governments would take the documentation through their internal 

approval processes. There may be a requirement for the NWEAB to present or provide further 
information as part of the process. Following approval, the Welsh Government would issue a Grant 
Award Letter to enable the drawdown of funding. 

 
 Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

 Project Business Cases – Approval Process 
 
4.5. Project business cases must be developed to the 5 Case Business Model according to Welsh 

Government and HM Treasury guidelines. These business cases are developed in three stages – 
Strategic Outline Case (SOC), Outline Business Case (OBC) and Full Business Case (FBC). 

 
4.6. Each of the five cases within this model serves a specific purpose: 
 

 Strategic Case – is the proposal needed? 

 Economic Case – is the proposal value for money? 

 Commercial Case – Is the proposal viable? 

 Financial Case – Is the proposal affordable? 

 Management Case – Is the proposal achievable? 

 
4.7. While the NWEAB is the decision making body for the Growth Deal in approving business cases, 

the UK and Welsh Government will review and approve the assurance process undertaken by each 
project. 

 
4.8. There are three key elements to the assurance process for business cases: 
 

 Business Case Development Process – developing a high quality business case according to 
the guidance, undertaking the relevant workshops and using specialist expertise where 
required. 

 Internal Assurance – consideration through the relevant project board, programme board, 
portfolio board, and the Portfolio Management Office. 

 External Assurance – through Gateway Reviews. 

 
4.9. Gateway Reviews are a key part of the assurance process. They are independent reviews 

undertaken at key decision points in the lifecycle of a project: 
 

 Gateway 1 – Business Justification. Aligned to the Strategic Outline Case (SOC). 

 Gateway 2 – Delivery Strategy. Aligned to the Outline Business Case (OBC). 

 Gateway 3 – Investment Decision. Aligned to the Full Business Case (FBC). 

 Gateway 4 – Readiness for Service. Post construction, but pre-service delivery. 

 Gateway 5 – Operational Review and Benefits Realisation. 

 PAR – Project Assessment Review. Flexible and used where projects fall between traditional 
Gateways. 

 
4.10. The majority of Growth Deal projects due to their maturity and the existence of the Portfolio and 

Programme Business Cases will progress to OBC stage.  
 
4.11 The NWEAB in approving an Outline Business Case (subject to government approval of the 

assurance process) will enable the project to progress the requirement procurement activity. This 
will enable the Full Business Case to be developed, providing increased certainly on cost, 
timescales and benefits.  Once the Full Business Case has been approved, delivery can commence. 

 
 
  

Page 67



 

 
 

 
STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority: 
 
“No observations to add in relation to propriety.” 
 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer): 
 
“As noted in paragraph 1.1, the report outlines the procedures to follow in securing the 
annual grant receipts.” 
 
 
 

Page 68



 
 

 

REPORT TO THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD 

5th FEBRUARY, 2021 
 

 

TITLE: Evolving the Business Delivery Group and enhancing private sector engagement   

AUTHOR: Alwen Williams, Portfolio Director 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. To present a proposed draft Terms of Reference for the Business Delivery Board, jointly developed 

by the Business Delivery Group and the Portfolio Management Office.  
 
2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. To endorse the proposed draft Terms of Reference which outlines a revised remit for the Business 

Delivery Group. It should be noted that once the Terms of Reference are agreed a new name, 
appropriate to the revised remit should be agreed.  

 
2.2. To endorse that current Business Delivery Group members, in collaboration with the NWEAB Chair 

and the Portfolio Director, and to work together to appoint a permanent Chair for the group. 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. As stated in the report. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. It was agreed by members of the Business Delivery Group and the Portfolio Management Office, 

at their January meeting held 12th January, 2021 that it was timely and appropriate to look at the 
remit of the Business Delivery Group. 

 
4.2. The Growth Deal projects will help North Wales to overcome the barriers to investment currently 

faced by the private sector and also place investment in high value sectors, such as low carbon 
energy and advanced manufacturing, thus enabling the region to build on its strengths. 

 
4.3. The approach to deliver the Growth Deal successfully is founded on a strong and collaborative 

relationship between the Welsh and UK Governments, regional partners and the private sector. 
 
4.4. With the Final Deal signed in December 2020, it is important to develop the regional relationships 

and structures to enable and foster strong and inclusive relationships with the private sector. 
 
4.5. The draft Terms of Reference have been jointly developed between the Economic Ambition Board, 

the Portfolio Management Office and the private sector representatives who, together, paved the 
way, over many years, to get the Final Deal signed. 

 
4.6. The current membership, led by the interim Chair, with support from the Portfolio Management 

Office will recruit and appoint new members to represent all sectors being addressed by the 
Growth Deal.  Page 69

Agenda Item 9



 

 
4.7. Once the group’s membership is agreed, the group will nominate a Chair, with support from the 

Chair of the NWEAB and the Portfolio Director. It is proposed the nominated Chair serves a term 
of 2 years. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Budget allocation of £20K is included in the 2020/21 budget. This provision was made as 

remuneration for the Business Delivery Board Chair. 
 
5.2. This budget provision remains in the budget because the recruitment of a Chair via the public 

appointment process was unsuccessful and an interim Chair is in place.  
 
5.3. It is proposed the reformed Board operates in a voluntary capacity with the £20K budget, allocated 

historically for Chair remuneration, being allocated to the work of the reformed Board in 2021/22. 
The budget amount can be further reviewed during 2021/22.  

 
5.4. The reformed Board will utilise the budget in a way that supports their work to achieve the 

outcomes as described in their Terms of Reference. Budget may be used for events, commissioned 
research, survey work or other such activities. All expenditure would be administered by the 
Portfolio Management Office in line with Gwynedd Council policies and procedures. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. The Business Delivery Group has been established as a Sub-Group of the Economic Ambition 

Board. GA 2 stipulates: 
 

“The Joint Committee shall establish the membership, rules of procedure or terms of reference for 
all or any such sub committees or sub-groups or project management bodies to, amongst other 
matters, clarify their respective role and scope of any delegation which shall be approved by the 
Joint Committee“ 

 
6.2. Approval of the Business Delivery Board’s draft Terms of Reference is a matter for the Joint 

Committee. 
 
7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. None. 
 
8. IMPACT ON EQUALITIES 
 
8.1. None. 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN 
 
9.1. The Business Delivery Group met on the 12th January, 2021 and on the 20th January to discuss and 

develop the Terms of Reference jointly with representatives from the Portfolio Management 
Office. 

 

 

APPENDICES: 
 

Appendix 1 Proposed Draft Terms of Reference 

Appendix 2  Current Terms of Reference as included in GA2 

 
Page 70



 

 
STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer – Host Authority: 
 
“I will be in position to advise on the report and proposed terms of reference at the 
meeting.” 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer (the Host Authority’s Section 151 Officer): 
 
“I confirm the financial position set out in parts 5.1 and 5.2 of this report, and support the 
financial aspects of the proposed solution, as outlined in parts 5.3 and 5.4.” 
 

Page 71



Draft Terms of Reference – [Name of Board to be agreed by the EAB] 

(Business Delivery Board is a defined term in GA2 and any name adopted will be referenced to this term) 

Updated: 26 January 2020 

Background 

The Business Delivery Board has been established by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

(“Economic Ambition Board”) as a sub-group.  It was suggested by members of the Business Delivery 

Group and agreed by the Portfolio Management Office, at their 12th January, 2021 meeting that it was 

timely and appropriate to review the remit of the Business Delivery Group. This decision is consistent 

with the desire by the Economic Ambition Board to invite the Business Delivery Group to propose an 

approach for building further on the relationship with the private sector.  

The Growth Deal projects will help North Wales to overcome the barriers to investment currently 

faced by the private sector and also place investment in high value sectors, such as low carbon energy 

and advanced manufacturing, thus enabling the region to build on its strengths.  

The approach to deliver the Growth Deal successfully is founded on a strong and collaborative 
relationship between the Welsh and UK Governments, regional partners and the private sector.  

With the Final Deal signed in December 2020, it is important to develop the regional relationships and 
structures to enable and foster strong and inclusive relationships with the private sector.   

These draft Terms of Reference have been jointly developed between the Economic Ambition Board, 

the Portfolio Management Office and the private sector representatives who, together, paved the 

way, over many years, to get the Final Deal signed.  

Status and Purpose  

The North Wales Economic Ambition Board established the Business Delivery Board as a sub-group to 

provide independent advice, support and guidance to the Economic Ambition Board and to work in 

collaboration with the Portfolio Management Office to deliver the Growth Deal.  

Aims 

The Business Delivery Board share the same aims as the North Wales Economic Ambition Board and 

their work will focus on supporting the region to deliver against these key aims.  

The key aims to be delivered by the Economic Ambition Board by means of the Growth Deal are: 

 To build a more vibrant, sustainable and resilient economy in North Wales. 
 To build on our strengths, to boost productivity while tackling long-term challenges and economic 

barriers to deliver inclusive growth. 
 The approach is to promote growth in a scalable, inclusive and sustainable way, in line with the 

Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

The key objectives to be delivered by the Economic Ambition Board by means of the Growth Deal are:  

 Create 3,400 – 4,200 net additional jobs. 
 Generate £2.0 – £2.5 billion in net additional GVA. 
 Attract total investment of over £1bn into the North Wales economy. 

Achieving these aims and objectives are reliant on a dynamic and effective relationship with the 

private sector both locally in North Wales but also beyond this and into the international investor 

Page 72



market. The focus has changed from being internally focused on achieving the deal to delivery and 

thus attracting investment.  

All of the objectives are interdependent and founded on good collaboration to sell North Wales to the 

world. We will invest the Government investment of £240m in our portfolio of projects defined within 

the Growth Deal and this will unlock the potential for further investment to come into the region from 

private sector investors who can see the potential in the region as we can. 

Remit and Responsibilities 

The Board provides: 

Strategic advice to the Economic Ambition Board on matters relating to the North Wales Growth Deal 

programmes which are – low carbon energy, digital connectivity, land and property, innovation in 

high-value manufacturing, agri-food and tourism. Advice also sought in the areas of broader economic 

development, transport and skills.  

Support to actively promote the Growth Deal and seek the engagement and participation of all key 

sectors in the development and delivery of Growth Deal projects. The Board should independently 

gather and share market intelligence, evidence and analysis which will contribute and support to the 

progress monitoring and evaluation of impact from Growth Deal projects.  

Guidance on how to leverage private sector investment into North Wales. The two key programmes 

that require significant investment from private sector partners are Land and Property and Low 

Carbon Energy. Close consultation and a planned approach to target this required investment which 

equates to over £700m will be required. 

The Board will:  

 provide strategic challenge to ensure that resources and funds are aligned to deliver against the 

Growth Deal’s aims and objectives. 

 provide advocacy and support within their networks and beyond, utilising all appropriate channels 

at their disposal to do so. 

 engage and influence Governments to drive policy development in key strategic areas. This 

approach will be agreed and coordinated between the Chair and the Portfolio Director in order to 

help achieve the outcomes desired. 

 provide insight, data and advice regarding the region’s priority areas in business and/or where 

issues exist.  

 facilitate introductions, as appropriate, to potential investors looking for suitable projects to 

invest in across North Wales. 

 encourage and facilitate communication and interaction between the business community (local 

and beyond) and the Portfolio Management Office. Sharing collateral and resources to build 

understanding of what North Wales has to offer and how the Growth Deal makes this even more 

attractive.  

 support and are involved in the marketing strategy and plan for the Growth Deal. Actively share 

and like the key social media messages and give a personal flavour on why and how our Growth 

Deal opportunities and investments will make a difference.  

Economic Ambition Board 

Governance Agreement 2 “GA2” encapsulates the constitution and role of the Business Delivery 

Board, as a sub-group to the Economic Ambition Board. In accordance with GA2 the constitution, role 

Page 73



and membership of the board and any amendments will be proposed to, and agreed with the 

Economic Ambition Board. 

The Economic Ambition Board will fully consider and take into account any advice or challenge from 

the Business Delivery Board.   Any formal recommendations made by the Business Delivery Board to 

the Economic Ambition Board will be presented in a written report which will be considered at a 

meeting of the Board and the response and reasons will be recorded and communicated. 

Meetings 

The Board will meet monthly on-line for two hours. These arrangements will stay in place until such 

time it is safe and appropriate to revise the arrangements and consider face to face meetings.  

Agendas for the meeting setting out the business to be transacted shall be agreed with the chair and 

should be circulated to members by the Portfolio Management Office no later than three clear (save 

in cases of urgency) prior to the day of the meeting.  

Secretariat 

The secretariat role is provided by the Portfolio Management Office on behalf of the Economic 

Ambition Board. 

Chair 

The Chair will be appointed by the Business Delivery Board at its first meeting following the start of 

the financial year.  

The Chair will work closely with the Portfolio Director, Chair and Vice Chair of the Economic Ambition 

Board and will deliver high quality and relevant advice in accordance to the Board’s purpose and 

responsibilities.   

The Chair will promote the views of the Board to the Economic Ambition Board and will lead the forum 

in developing and maintaining effective relationships between the Economic Ambition Board, its sub-

committees and the private sector.  

The Chair of the Board will be an Adviser of the Economic Ambition Board and they, in partnership, 

will play a key role in providing insight and direction to Welsh and UK Government, in relation to 

decisions required to strengthen the economy of North Wales.   

Membership 

Members will be outward looking and are well-connected beyond the North Wales region. This will 

enable it to bring expertise and potential investment into the region. 

New members will be recruited in an open and transparent way, and in accordance with the selection 

criteria as defined below. They will be nominated and proposed by the current Business Delivery 

Board, and endorsed by the Portfolio Director in consultation with the Economic Ambition Board 

Chair. The appointment of members will be confirmed and communicated by Economic Ambition 

Board. 

The Board operates on a voluntary basis and membership collectively should: 

 represent all relevant sectors being addressed by the Growth Deal. 

 Includes representation by the social enterprise and third/voluntary sector. 

Page 74



 considers how the voice of key strategic stakeholders/employers such as the National Park, health 

and social care and housing are heard. 

 comprises a maximum of 18 members. 

In appointing members consideration will be given to establishing a membership which as far as 

possible is balanced overall so that it reflects and represents the whole of the geographical area of 

North Wales its business sectors and communities and this will need to be taken into account during 

the appointment process. 

Budget 

The Portfolio Management Office will be provided with an initial annual budget of £20K to support 

and facilitate the work of the Business Delivery Board.  The budget should be utilised in a way that 

supports their work to achieve the outcomes as described in the Terms of Reference. Budget may be 

used for events, commissioned research, survey work or other such activities. All expenditure would 

be administered by the Portfolio Management Office and approved by the Portfolio Director in line 

with Gwynedd Council policies and procedures. 

Conflict of Interest 

To allow the Business Delivery Board to undertake all its function, a clear distinction will be drawn 

between those involved in specific project development and those preparing recommendations on 

those projects to the Economic Ambition Board.  A robust system of declaration of conflict of interest 

will be put in place.  In addition, Advisors to the Economic Ambition Board are governed by a GA Code 

of Conduct and the Conflicts Policy in relation to personal interests. Members appointed to the 

Business Delivery Board will be expected to comply with the same provisions. 

GA2 

As part of each party's appointment to the Business Delivery Board they will each acknowledge and 

accept the terms of the GA2 and will be expected to comply with the same to include (but not limited 

to) Clause 22 (Confidentiality and Announcements). 

 

Page 75



Business Delivery Board's Terms of Reference 
 

BUSINESS DELIVERY BOARD 
 

 
 
1. Role and Remit 

 
1.1. The Business Delivery Board will act as the voice of the business and employers in the region, 

working closely with organisations such as the North Wales & Mersey Dee Business Council 
(the umbrella body for Business representative organisations). It will focus on the delivery of 
the Growth Vision for the region.  
 

1.2. It will have a key role in challenging and advising the North Wale Economic Ambition Board on 
matters relating to the Growth Vision and Growth Deal. 
 

1.3. The Board will highlight the barriers to growth, as well as bring forward ideas and proposals.  
It will be expected that the North Wales Economic Ambition Board will consider ways in which 
such proposals can be delivered. 
 

1.4. The Board is a key part of the Growth Deal governance apparatus and performs an important 
two-fold role: 
 

 To ensure the voice and wishes of business shape and influence the Growth Vision for 
North Wales and the Growth Deal package and delivery; 

 To ensure that opportunities galvanised and catalysed by the development of the 
Growth Deal can be accessed and led by businesses. 

 
1.5. The Board is committed to optimising the opportunities within the Growth Deal, and 

promoting investment leverage from companies, enterprises and businesses. 
 

1.6. The Board will consist of a Chair and between 9-12 members. Its membership will include 
representatives and sector experts from key businesses from the growth and foundation 
economic sectors across the region.  There is an expectation that the Board Members will 
include senior decision makers from representative organisations. 
 

1.7. Its programme of work (which will be set out in an annual business plan) will demonstrate 
clearly the private sector opportunities stemming from the delivery of the Growth Vision and 
Growth Deal.  The annual business plan and proposals brought forward by the Board will be 
formally considered by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board for incorporation within its 
work programme. 
 

1.8. It will strengthen the profile of the business voice and input into the Growth Deal, in order 
that whilst it is politically-led, it is business and industry driven and delivered. 
 

1.9. The Board will ensure that investment in growth is informed and shaped by business for 
business. 
 

1.10. The Chair of the Board will be an Adviser of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board and, 
in partnership with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board will play a key role in providing 
leadership and key relations with Welsh Government and the UK Government.  The post of 
Chair will be advertised and publicly appointed. 

Page 76



 

1.11. The constitution and role of the Board within the governance of the Growth Deal and its inter-
relationship with the Joint Committee will be encapsulated in Governance Agreement 2.  The 
Board must be flexible to change their constitution and role as they fit in order to be as 
independent as possible.  The constitution and role of the Board and any amendments will be 
agreed with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. 
 

1.12. The North Wales Economic Ambition Board will fully consider and take into account any advice 
or challenge from the Business Delivery Board.   Any formal recommendations made by the 
Business Delivery Board to the North Wales Economic Ambition Board will be presented in a 
written report to them which will be considered at a meeting of the Board and the response 
and reasons will be recorded and communicated.  

 
2. Key Responsibilities 

 
2.1. The Business Delivery Board will be responsible for: 
 

 Reviewing and shaping the Growth Vision for North Wales; 

 Provide review and challenge to the portfolio of projects proposed within the Growth 
Deal, and consider and challenge the Full Business Cases for individual projects 
maximising the impact of the Growth Deal for the region, securing additional direct 
and indirect private sector investment for the Deal.; 

 Focus on the delivery of projects commissioned by the North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board, and ensure that opportunities catalysed by the Growth Deal can be 
accessed and led by businesses; 

 Provide an advocacy role, promoting the region as a prime investor and visitor 
location and working with partners to increase the value and quality for inward 
investment; 

 Provide advice on proposed intervention from other key stakeholders, including 
Welsh Government. 

 
2.2. It will work closely and in partnership with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board.  
 
3. The Chair of the Board 

 
3.1. The Chair will be appointed on a two-year fixed term basis, with the maximum number of 

terms limited to two. 
 

3.2. The time commitment, whilst flexible, is assumed to be an average of 1 day a week, though 
the level of commitment will fluctuate across the term. 
 

3.3. The role will be remunerated at a level which reflects the significance of the role. 
 

3.4. The Chair will be responsible for: 
 

 Leading the Board, ensuring it fulfils its responsibilities; 

 Chair meetings of the Board, collecting views expressed by each stakeholder group 
and where necessary arriving at a consensus; 

 Communicating and representing the recommendations of the Board on the North 
Wales Economic Ambition Board; 

Page 77



 Being a “business” figurehead and champion of the region both nationally and 
internationally. 

 
The Chair should have the following background and experience: 

 

 Be a member of the private sector business community; 

 Have extensive senior leadership experience; 

 Have a wide network of public, private and government contacts which extends 
beyond the region. 

 
3.5. Strategic, research, policy and media support will be provided to the Chair and the Business 

Delivery Board by the Portfolio Management Office (once fully established). 
 

3.6. Both the UK Government and Welsh Government will need to approve the appointment of 
the Chair.  The process will be overseen by the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. Subject 
to the approval of both the UK and Welsh Governments the Chair will be appointed by the 
North Wales Economic Ambition Board.  
 

3.7. The Chair will be appointed in accordance with the acknowledged standards for public 
appointments, including an open advert.  
 

4. Selecting the Business Delivery Board Members 
 

4.1. The selection process must be open and transparent, accompanied by the selection criteria 
listed below. 
 

4.2. The Appointment Panel will consist of the Chair and Vice-Chair of the North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board and the Chair of the Business Delivery Board.  The Panel will put forward 
recommendations to the Economic Ambition Board for approval of the most suitable 
candidates to appoint. 
 

4.3. The Board Membership role will be advertised publicly to encourage a diverse range of 
applications.  The collective set of skills and experience of the Board will be a key 
consideration.  There will be an application process which will allow for proposed members to 
be nominated. 
 

4.4. Collectively, the Board should have the following knowledge and skills: 
 

 Understanding of the economy of North Wales and an appreciation of opportunities 
in the growth and foundation economic sectors across the region; 

 A wide network of contacts across the UK and internationally; 

 Experience of analysing and assessing commercial, technical and financial information 
in order to provide quality advice to decision makers; 

 Experience of providing impartial advice on projects and initiatives, particularly in 
relation to their viability and impact on economy and employment issues. 

 
4.5. The process will be undertaken in consultation with both Governments. 

 
4.6. In appointing members consideration will be given to establishing a membership which as far 

as possible is balanced overall so that it reflects and represents the whole of the geographical 

Page 78



area of North Wales its business sectors and communities and this will need to be taken into 
account during the appointment process. 

 
5. Conflict of Interest 
 
5.1. To allow the Business Delivery Board to undertake all its function, a clear distinction will be 

drawn between those involved in specific project development and those preparing 
recommendations on those projects to the North Wales Economic Ambition Board.  A robust 
system of declaration of conflict of interest will be put in place.  In addition, Advisors to the 
Economic Ambition Board are governed by a GA Code of Conduct and the Conflicts Policy in 
relation to personal interests. Members appointed to the Business Delivery Board will be 
expected to comply with the same provisions. 

 

6. GA2 
 

6.1. As part of each party's appointment to the Business Delivery Board they will each acknowledge 
and accept the terms of the GA2 and will be expected to comply with the same to include (but 
not limited to) Clause 22 (Confidentiality and Announcements). 

 

Page 79


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 2020/21 BUDGET : 3RD QUARTER REVIEW
	Slide Number 1

	6 FINAL DEAL AGREEMENT
	ITEM 06 - APPENDIX 01 - FDA - FINAL - LOCKED - v1 - ENGLISH - 2020-12-15

	7 PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHT REPORT
	ITEM 07 - APPENDIX 01 - NWGD Portfolio Highlight Report - February 2021

	8 FUNDING AND BUSINESS CASE PROCESS
	9 PRIVATE SECTOR ENGAGEMENT
	ITEM 09 - APPENDIX 01 - Draft Terms of Reference
	ITEM 09- APPENDIX 02 - Terms of Reference GA2


